
 

 

 

Village of Hill Spring 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Hill Spring Council Chambers 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
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1. CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER  

 

2. ACCEPTANCE/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA  

 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

a) 2020.05.18 

b) 2020.05.25  

 

4. DELEGATION   

 

5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

 

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS:  

a) Cheque Listing for 20210107 – 20210126 

b) Revenues & Expenses report as information 

 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

a) IDP Bylaw 2021 – 321  

b) Sewer installation  - 1st street W between 3rd and 2nd ave (Mayor Davis) 

c)  

 

8. ADMINISTRATORS & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

a) Admin Report 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

a) 2021.04 CMRSWA Minutes 

b) 2021.06 Bulletin AB SW 

c) CCES Minutes Jun 3, 2021 

d) CCES Policy Fire Response Billing 

e) CMRSW 2020 Financial Statements 
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f) 2021.05.28 Minister Savage  

g) RCMP Support letters: 

- Village of Caroline 

- Smoky Lake County 

- Red Deer County 

- Village of Milo 

- Town of Red Cliff 

- Falher 

- Banff National Park  

- Village of Rycroft 

- Town of Mayerthorpe 

h) 2021.01.07 ORRSC  

i) Farm Safety Center 

 

10. CLOSED MEETING: Roads/Water (Mayor) 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT:  














VILLAGE OF HILL SPRING 
May 18, 2021 DRAFT 


 
The Village of Hill Spring Regular Council Meeting was held at the Hill 
Spring Council Chambers on May 18, 2021 commencing at 7:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance:   Mayor Davis, and Councillors French, Hegedus and Shideler 
 
Officials:  Village Manager, Janet Edwards,  CFO Hakon Skoien 
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 CALLED TO ORDER 
 
ADOPTION OF THE 
AGENDA 
2021.05.064 
 
ADOPTION OF 
MINUTES 
2020.04.20  
2021.05.065 
 
2020.05.04 
2021.05.066 
  
 
DELEGATION 
 
BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
COUNCIL CHEQUE 
LISTING 
20210080 - 20210113 
2021.05.067 
 
2021 MILL RATE 
BUDGET  
2021.05.068 
 
 
2021-315 TAX RATE 
BYLAW 
2021.05.069 
 
2021.05.070 
 
2021.05.071 
 
2021.05.072 
 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS FOR 
DISCUSSION 
 
WATER PLANT 
OPERATOR REPORT 
 
 
 


Mayor Davis called the Regular Council Meeting to Order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED to accept the agenda as amended. Additions: 7.f 
New post office Building, 7. G Glenwood Firetruck  


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Shideler MOVED that the April 20, 2021 minutes be approved. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Shideler MOVED that the May 4, 2021 special meeting minutes be 
approved. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Administration was asked for an update on the fencing along the road 
corridor leading up to the WP. Administration  discussed with Brent Brook-
Allred and it was determined that the fencing would not proceed as the 
agreement only allows fencing only around the actual water plant property 
and not the access road. An alternative idea is to widen the approach and 
install a Texas gate at the base of the road, in addition to the existing gate. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Christensen MOVED that the cheque listing 20210080 – 
20210113 be approved as information. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Shideler MOVED that the 2021 mill rate budget be approved. 


4 in favor, 1 opposed (Councillor French) Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Christensen MOVED to give Tax Rate Bylaw 2021-315 1st reading. 


4 in favor, 1 opposed (Councillor French)Carried 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED to give Tax Rate Bylaw 2021-315 2nd reading. 


4 in favor, 1 opposed (Councillor French) Carried 
Mayor Davis MOVED to go to third reading of Tax Rate Bylaw 2021-315. 


4 in favor, 1 opposed (Councillor French) Carried 
Mayor Davis MOVED that Tax Rate Bylaw 2021-315 be given 3rd and final 
reading and passed. 


4 in favor, 1 opposed (Councillor French) Carried 
 
 
 
 
Derek McCarthy discussed maintenance of the main water valves. It is a 
requirement of Alberta Environment for the valves to be exercised annually. 
The valves have not been done recently. He indicated that if they exercise 
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2021.05.073 
 
 
 
 
IDP BYLAW 2021-321 
 
2021.05.074 
 
 
 
VIABILITY REPORT # 4 
2021.05.075 
 
 
WATER COMMISSION  
2021.05.076 
 
 
OLD POST OFFICE 
BUILDING USE(S) 
2021.05.077 
 
 
NEW POST OFFICE 
BUILDING 
 
 
GLENWOOD FIRE 
TRUCK 
 
 
EXTEND MEETING 
BEYOND 9:30 P.M. 
2021.05.078 
 
 
ADMINISTRATOR, 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
AND 
CORRESPONDENCE 
2021.05.079 
 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
2021.05.080 
 
 
 
2021.05.081 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


them and they leak they will need to be replaced. Approximate cost for 
replacement is about $6000.00 per valve.  
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED that the operators exercise up to four per year 
pending no leaks in the three valves.  Irrigation reserve money can be used to 
pay for valve replacements if needed.  


Carried 
 
ORRSC Planner Ryan Dyck attended the council meeting and joined in the 
discussion concerning the May 2021 draft IDP. 
Mayor Davis MOVED that administration work with Ryan Dyck to draft a 
letter on Village letterhead to Cardston County Council requesting revisions 
to the IDP. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Davis MOVED that Viability Report #4 due June 1, 2021 be approved 
as amended.  


Carried 
 
Councillor Christensen MOVED that water commission meeting be tabled 
until the IDP is completed.  


Carried 
 
 
Mayor Davis MOVED that administration engage the public through the local 
newsletter, asking for ideas for Village uses of the building. 


Carried 
 


Administration has contacted Mike Schaffer Construction concerning cement 
work for steps/ramp to the building.  
 
 
Councillor Shideler indicated that the Glenwood Firetruck will need to be 
replaced in 2-3 years.  
 
 
 
Mayor Christensen MOVED that the council meeting be extended beyond 9:30 
p.m. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED that the reports and correspondence be accepted 
as information.  


Carried 
 
Mayor Davis MOVED to go into a closed meeting at 9:50 p.m.as per FOIP 
Section 15. Attending closed meeting: Mayor Davis, Councillors Christensen, 
French, Hegedus and Shideler and Administrator Janet Edwards. 


Carried 
Mayor Davis MOVED to come out of closed meeting and return to public 
meeting at 10:15 p.m. 


Carried 
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2021.05.082 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
2021.05.083 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Councillor Christensen MOVED that the road restructuring, project funded 
through the Municipal Stimulus Program, be tabled pending more detailed 
information for the scope of work from Wilde Bros Engineering and for 
administration to contact the MSP Grants department and inquire if the 
approved funding can be reallocated.   


Carried 
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED to adjourn @ 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
 


_________________________________________________ 
                    Mayor Dwight Davis 


 
 
 


_________________________________________________ 
                                         Village Manager Janet Edwards 


  
 








VILLAGE OF HILL SPRING  
May 25, 2021 


 
The Village of Hill Spring Special Council Meeting was held at the Hill Spring 
Community Hall on May 25, 2021 commencing at 7:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance:   Mayor Davis, and Councillors Christensen, , Hegedus and 
Shideler; Paul McClean, Tough Country  
 
Officials:  Village Manager, Janet Edwards,  
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 CALLED TO ORDER 
 
ADOPTION OF THE 
AGENDA 
2021.05.084 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS FOR 
DISCUSSION 
Municipal Stimulus 
Grant – Road rebasing 
project revision 
2021.05.085 
 
 
 
 
 
2021.05.086 
 
 
 
 
2021.05.087 
 
 
2021.05.088 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
2021.05.089 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Mayor Davis called the Special Council Meeting to Order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED to accept the agenda as amended. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Christensen MOVED to use the Municipal Stimulus Grant to rebase 
the following roads: On center ave. from main street to 1st street W and 1st 
street W between 2nd & 3rd ave. in place of the original plan to do 2nd street W 
between 1st ave. and 3rd ave. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Davis MOVED to go into closed session at 7:45 p.m. as per Section 23 
of the FOIP Act. 


Carried 
In attendance at closed meeting: Mayor Davis, Councillors Christensen,  
Hegedus & Shideler, Admin Janet  
Councillor Christensen MOVED to come out of closed session and return to 
open meeting at 8:05 p.m. 


Carried  
Councillor Christensen MOVED to accept the low bid of $50,337.51 from 
Becks Excavating for the project relocation subject to reaffirming with Becks 
Excavating that the existing bid will cover the revisions to the specifications. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Hegedus MOVED to adjourn @ 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 


_________________________________________________ 
                    Mayor Dwight Davis 


 
 
 
 


_________________________________________________ 
                                         Village Manager Janet Edwards 
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Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


General 


Ledger


PAYMENT 20210107 2021-05-06 CANADA POST  34.78


MAY 2021 NL MAY NEWSLETTER2-12-00-00-00-235  34.78 


PAYMENT 20210108 2021-05-06 GOVERNMENT OF ALBERTA  45.00


APR 30 2021 LAND TITLES2-12-00-00-00-280  45.00 


PAYMENT 20210109 2021-05-06 KOODO MOBILE  47.71


APRIL 27 2021 ADMIN CELL PHONE2-12-00-00-00-215  47.71 


PAYMENT 20210110 2021-05-06 SPRING GLEN PARK  1,500.00


R-0003 ANNUAL REQUISITION2-72-00-00-00-772  1,500.00 


PAYMENT 20210111 2021-05-06 TELUS COMMUNICATIONS  146.06


APRIL 28 2021 OFFICE PHONE CHARGES2-12-00-00-00-215  146.06 


PAYMENT 20210112 2021-05-06 XPLORNET  94.48


37215911 WP PHONE2-41-00-00-00-270  94.48 


 20210114 2021-05-18 DAVIS, DWIGHT  500.00


PAYMENT 20210115 2021-05-18 1218420 ALBERTA LTD.  756.00


4633 REMOTE BACKUP YEARLY INVOICE 20212-12-00-00-00-233  756.00 


PAYMENT 20210116 2021-05-18 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION  762.25


21-1038648 UTILITY CHARGES2-41-00-00-00-540  71.56 


21-1038648 UTILITY CHARGES2-12-00-00-00-540  177.36 


21-1038648 UTILITY CHARGES2-23-00-00-00-540  127.70 


21-1038648 UTILITY CHARGES2-32-00-00-00-540  385.63 


PAYMENT 20210117 2021-05-18 BECK'S SEPTIC AND GRAVEL  147.00


830429 PUMPOUT SEWER TANK AT WP2-41-00-00-00-250  147.00 


PAYMENT 20210118 2021-05-18 CANADA POST  386.40


2021.05.17 POSTAGE STAMPS2-12-00-00-00-235  386.40 


PAYMENT 20210119 2021-05-18 CARDSTON HOME HARDWARE  222.58


101-107341 REPAIR PARTS FOR SUMP2-41-00-00-00-252  222.58 


PAYMENT 20210120 2021-05-18 FARM SAFETY CENTRE  300.00


2021.02.22 FARM SAFETY2-12-00-00-00-220  300.00 


PAYMENT 20210121 2021-05-18 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL INC.  816.13


1244842 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE ON ZERO TURN MOWER2-31-00-00-00-526  471.71 


1244843 ANNUAL SERVICE ON RIDING MOWER2-31-00-00-00-526  344.42 


PAYMENT 20210122 2021-05-18 KLASSEN, NELA  245.00


MAY 17 2021 CONTRACT CLEANING COM HALL2-74-00-00-00-250  245.00 


PAYMENT 20210123 2021-05-18 MUNIWARE  304.51


20210536 JUNE SUPPORT 20212-12-00-00-00-230  304.51 


PAYMENT 20210124 2021-05-18 SOUTHERN IRRIGATION  22.07


297689 IRRIGATION PARTS2-40-00-00-00-252  22.07 


 20210125 2021-05-31 EDWARDS, JANET L  3,075.35


PAYMENT 20210126 2021-05-18 SPOT POWER  1,845.35


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-41-00-00-00-540  353.15 


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-40-00-00-00-540  79.00 


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-12-00-00-00-540  283.48 


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-23-00-00-00-540  95.52 


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-41-00-00-00-540  755.42 


MAY 11 2021 UTILITY CHARGES2-72-00-00-00-540  278.78 


*** End of Report ***


Total  11,250.67
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2021-Jun-9


Revenues & Expenses 


General 


Ledger


Description 2020 Budget 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 YTD 


Budget


2021 YTD 


Actual
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Taxes


1-00-00-00-00-101 TAXES - RESIDENTIAL  117,430.00  131,073.36  119,780.00  128,177.67  119,780.00  128,177.67 


1-00-00-00-00-103 TAXES - COMMERCIAL  2,030.00  2,069.52  2,070.00  2,292.20  2,070.00  2,292.20 


1-00-00-00-00-105 TAXES - LINEAR  7,590.00  7,936.86  7,740.00  7,082.57  7,740.00  7,082.57 


1-00-00-00-00-121 TAXES - MINIMUM LEVY  14,624.00 (111.77)  0.00  7,050.00  0.00  7,050.00 


1-98-00-00-00-102 REQ - CHINOOK FOUNDATION  3,095.00  3,077.17  3,200.00  3,100.10  3,200.00  3,100.10 


1-98-00-00-00-115 REQ - SCHOOL NON-RESIDENTIAL  1,916.00  1,716.56  2,000.00  2,254.01  2,000.00  2,254.01 


1-98-00-00-00-116 REQ - SCHOOL RESIDENTIAL  36,198.00  36,280.80  36,900.00  36,902.06  36,900.00  36,902.06 


*        TOTAL Taxes 182,883.00 182,042.50 171,690.00 186,858.61 171,690.00 186,858.61


Administration Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-510 TAXES - PENALTIES & COSTS  8,000.00  6,205.22  9,000.00  704.74  9,000.00  704.74 


1-00-00-00-00-541 FRANCHISE & CONCESSION ATCO 


REVENUE


 7,000.00  7,218.42 (7,000.00)  3,394.49 (7,000.00)  3,394.49 


1-00-00-00-00-550 RETURN ON INVESTMENTS  8,000.00  10,696.75  8,000.00  105.51  8,000.00  105.51 


1-12-00-00-00-410 PINS,PHOTOCOPY,FAX, ETC REVENUE  0.00  18.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-12-00-00-00-433 ASSESSMENT APPEAL DEPOSIT  0.00  75.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-12-00-00-00-990 ADMINISTRATION - MISC REVENUE  3,000.00  27,865.33  3,000.00  7,145.95  3,000.00  7,145.95 


*        TOTAL Administration Revenue 26,000.00 52,078.72 13,000.00 11,350.69 13,000.00 11,350.69


Grants - Operating


1-00-00-00-00-844 GRANT - MSI OPERATIONAL  34,716.00  23,616.00  23,000.00  0.00  23,000.00  0.00 


1-00-00-00-00-750 GRANTS - OTHER  0.00  102,648.51  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Grants - Operating 34,716.00 126,264.51 23,000.00 0.00 23,000.00 0.00


Protective Services


1-12-00-00-00-520 LICENSES - DOG  50.00  190.00  50.00  190.00  50.00  190.00 


*        TOTAL Protective Services 50.00 190.00 50.00 190.00 50.00 190.00


Shop Revenue


*        TOTAL Shop Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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Budget


2021 YTD 


Actual
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Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 SALES - IRRIGATION  6,825.00  6,961.02  7,000.00  2,352.32  7,000.00  2,352.32 


1-40-00-00-00-763 RESERVE FUND REVENUE IRRIGATION  2,500.00  3,224.90  2,500.00  1,326.71  2,500.00  1,326.71 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue 9,325.00 10,185.92 9,500.00 3,679.03 9,500.00 3,679.03


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-410 SALES - WATER  0.00  235.32  0.00  534.30  0.00  534.30 


1-41-00-00-00-411 SALES - WATER FLAT RATE  60,000.00  65,569.33  66,000.00  21,741.10  66,000.00  21,741.10 


1-41-00-00-00-510 WATER - PENALTIES & COSTS  650.00  901.62  650.00  235.15  650.00  235.15 


1-41-00-00-00-763 RESERVE FUND WATER REVENUE  2,500.00  3,750.82  2,500.00  1,559.41  2,500.00  1,559.41 


1-41-00-00-00-420 WATER SERVICE HOOK UP  1,200.00  1,200.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Water Revenue 64,350.00 71,657.09 69,150.00 24,069.96 69,150.00 24,069.96


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-410 SALES - SEWER  12,500.00  12,688.84  12,800.00  4,555.39  12,800.00  4,555.39 


1-42-00-00-00-763 RESERVE FUND SEWER REVENUE  2,700.00  2,965.82  2,700.00  1,230.61  2,700.00  1,230.61 


1-42-00-00-00-420 SEWER HOOK UP  1,200.00  1,200.00  0.00  1,200.00  0.00  1,200.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue 16,400.00 16,854.66 15,500.00 6,986.00 15,500.00 6,986.00


Solid Waste Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 SALES - GARBAGE  7,850.00  8,387.78  8,000.00  3,034.89  8,000.00  3,034.89 


*        TOTAL Solid Waste Revenue 7,850.00 8,387.78 8,000.00 3,034.89 8,000.00 3,034.89


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 CEMETERY - PLOTS & FEES  800.00  1,400.00  800.00  350.00  800.00  350.00 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue 800.00 1,400.00 800.00 350.00 800.00 350.00


Community Centre Revenue


1-74-00-00-00-560 RENTAL REVENUE - COMMUNITY CENTRE  1,000.00  3,295.00  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Community Centre Revenue 1,000.00 3,295.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00


Parks & Recreation Revenue
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*        TOTAL Parks & Recreation Reven 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 PERMIT - DEV/COMPLIANCE  300.00  955.00  300.00  515.00  300.00  515.00 


*        TOTAL Development Revenue 300.00 955.00 300.00 515.00 300.00 515.00


**       Total Revenue 343,674.00 473,311.18 311,990.00 237,034.18 311,990.00 237,034.18


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 COUNCIL HONOURARIUMS  10,000.00  10,600.00  10,000.00  3,600.00  10,000.00  3,600.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 COUNCIL TRAVEL  3,000.00  2,251.35  2,500.00  789.36  2,500.00  789.36 


2-11-00-00-00-520 COUNCIL MISC  1,000.00  215.00  700.00  0.00  700.00  0.00 


2-11-00-00-00-130 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION  0.00  265.16  0.00  28.61  0.00  28.61 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 14,000.00 13,331.51 13,200.00 4,417.97 13,200.00 4,417.97


Adminstration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 ADMINISTRATION - SALARIES  40,100.00  42,447.07  0.00  18,899.52  0.00  18,899.52 


2-12-00-00-00-112 SALARIES JANITORIAL ADMIN  600.00  62.50  600.00  0.00  600.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-113 ADMINISTRATION - TRAVEL & TRAINING - 


CAO


 3,500.00  2,406.00  3,000.00  1,415.29  3,000.00  1,415.29 


2-12-00-00-00-130 ADMINISTRATION - EMPLOYER 


CONTRIBUTIONS


 2,640.00  2,858.37  2,640.00  1,328.75  2,640.00  1,328.75 


2-12-00-00-00-142 ADMINISTRATION - WORKERS 


COMPENSATION


 750.00  738.80  750.00  514.69  750.00  514.69 


2-12-00-00-00-150 ADMINISTRATION - ELECTION & CENSUS  0.00  0.00  300.00  0.00  300.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-215 ADMINISTRATION -TELEPHONE  2,900.00  2,261.83  2,900.00  926.58  2,900.00  926.58 


2-12-00-00-00-220 ADMINISTRATION - ADVERT, PRINTING, 


MEMBE


 2,500.00  2,446.45  2,500.00  2,037.33  2,500.00  2,037.33 


2-12-00-00-00-230 ADMINISTRATION - PROFESSIONAL & 


CONSULT


 17,800.00  18,665.80  0.00  5,740.06  0.00  5,740.06 


2-12-00-00-00-233 ADMINISTRATION - COMPUTER SUPPORT  6,300.00  4,736.90  4,400.00  991.25  4,400.00  991.25 


2-12-00-00-00-235 ADMINISTRATION - POSTAGE & FREIGHT  2,000.00  1,566.40  2,000.00  962.02  2,000.00  962.02 


2-12-00-00-00-270 ADMINISTRATION - MISC EXPENSE  1,200.00  26,974.96  1,200.00  1,648.57  1,200.00  1,648.57 


2-12-00-00-00-274 ADMINISTRATION - INSURANCE  10,400.00  10,327.55  10,600.00  10,544.51  10,600.00  10,544.51 


2-12-00-00-00-280 ADMINISTRATION - LAND TITLES  250.00  230.30  250.00  75.00  250.00  75.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 ADMINISTRATION - OFFICE EQUIPMENT  3,200.00  3,970.57  3,200.00  1,444.40  3,200.00  1,444.40 


2-12-00-00-00-300 ADMINISTRATION - ASSESSOR FEES  3,900.00  3,900.00  4,000.00  2,250.00  4,000.00  2,250.00 


2-12-00-00-00-510 ADMINISTRATION - OFFICE SUPPLIES  500.00  684.85  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 ADMINISTRATION - UTILITIES  6,000.00  5,277.71  0.00  2,349.98  0.00  2,349.98 
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2-12-00-00-00-810 ADMINISTRATION - BANK CHARGES  1,500.00  1,180.03  0.00  372.71  0.00  372.71 


2-12-00-00-00-990 ADMINISTRATION - AMORTIZATION  98,000.00  110,560.00  100,000.00  0.00  100,000.00  0.00 


2-12-01-00-00-230 ADMINISTRATION - LAWYER  1,500.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-02-00-00-230 ADMINISTRATION - ACCOUNTANT  9,000.00  8,750.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-03-00-00-230 ADMINISTRATION - ENGINEER  500.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Adminstration Expenses 215,040.00 250,046.09 138,340.00 51,500.66 138,340.00 51,500.66


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OFFICER 


WAGES


 0.00  26.50  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 EMPLOYER SOURCE DEDUCTIONS  0.00  1.81  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 FIRE MISC  100.00  0.00  100.00  0.00  100.00  0.00 


2-23-00-00-00-510 FIRE GOODS & SUPPLIES  750.00  473.97  750.00  0.00  750.00  0.00 


2-23-00-00-00-540 FIRE UTILITIES  2,500.00  2,161.41  2,500.00  1,155.39  2,500.00  1,155.39 


2-23-00-00-00-750 FIRE REQUISITION  4,578.00  4,594.27  4,578.00  4,416.27  4,578.00  4,416.27 


2-23-00-00-00-760 FIRE DISPATCH SERVICES  700.00  759.36  700.00  4.47  700.00  4.47 


*        TOTAL Protective Services 8,628.00 8,017.32 8,628.00 5,576.13 8,628.00 5,576.13


Shop Expenses


2-31-00-00-00-130 V-MAINT - EMPLOYER DEDUCTIONS  450.00  330.01  450.00  13.69  450.00  13.69 


2-31-00-00-00-200 V MAINT WAGES STEP  6,000.00  5,690.10  6,000.00  386.10  6,000.00  386.10 


2-31-00-00-00-250 V MAINT CONTRACTED SERVICES  1,500.00  435.00  5,500.00  0.00  5,500.00  0.00 


2-31-00-00-00-510 V MAINT TOOLS, HARDWARE, OP  1,000.00  1,150.80  1,000.00  55.79  1,000.00  55.79 


2-31-00-00-00-524 V MAINT EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES  500.00  457.80  0.00  759.79  0.00  759.79 


2-31-00-00-00-526 V MAINT EQUIPMENT -SERVICE/REPAIR  2,000.00  867.83  2,000.00  824.57  2,000.00  824.57 


2-31-00-00-00-527 V MAINT FUEL  1,500.00  213.73  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 12,950.00 9,145.27 16,450.00 2,039.94 16,450.00 2,039.94


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-250 ROADS & STREETS CONTRACTED 


SERVICES


 1,000.00  5,760.00  1,000.00 (25.00)  1,000.00 (25.00)


2-32-00-00-00-530 ROADS & STREETS MAINT MATERIALS  11,850.00  2,250.28  1,950.00  0.00  1,950.00  0.00 


2-32-00-00-00-540 ROADS & STREETS UTILITIES  6,000.00  6,478.55  6,000.00  2,149.03  6,000.00  2,149.03 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 18,850.00 14,488.83 8,950.00 2,124.03 8,950.00 2,124.03


Irrigation Expenses
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2-40-00-00-00-252 IRRG SYSTEM MAINT  1,500.00  787.55  1,500.00  155.62  1,500.00  155.62 


2-40-00-00-00-350 IRRG SYSTEM WATER PURCHASE  2,100.00  2,322.21  2,100.00  0.00  2,100.00  0.00 


2-40-00-00-00-540 IRRG SYSTEM UTILITIES  1,900.00  2,412.15  1,900.00  343.80  1,900.00  343.80 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 5,500.00 5,521.91 5,500.00 499.42 5,500.00 499.42


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-250 WATER SUPPLY CONTRACTED SERVICES  37,500.00  34,867.32  37,500.00  12,201.68  37,500.00  12,201.68 


2-41-00-00-00-252 WATER SUPPLY MAINT  8,500.00  2,456.33  7,500.00  759.73  7,500.00  759.73 


2-41-00-00-00-270 WATER SUPPLY MISC  1,500.00  661.13  1,500.00  366.41  1,500.00  366.41 


2-41-00-00-00-510 WATER SUPPLY GOODS & SERVICE  4,000.00  3,698.48  4,000.00  543.93  4,000.00  543.93 


2-41-00-00-00-540 WATER SUPPLY UTILITIES  10,250.00  12,788.51  10,250.00  5,173.71  10,250.00  5,173.71 


2-41-00-00-00-550 WATER SUPPLY UTILITIES (FILTER 


STATION)


 3,600.00  0.00  3,600.00  0.00  3,600.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 65,350.00 54,471.77 64,350.00 19,045.46 64,350.00 19,045.46


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-250 SEWER CONTRACTED SERVICES  15,700.00  16,962.70  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-42-00-00-00-540 SEWER UTILITIES  2,500.00  1,431.54  2,700.00 (0.04)  2,700.00 (0.04)


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 18,200.00 18,394.24 2,700.00 (0.04) 2,700.00 (0.04)


Solid Waste Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-750 REQUISITION - SOLID WASTE  4,200.00  4,197.42  0.00  2,223.45  0.00  2,223.45 


2-43-00-00-00-110 SOLID WASTE WAGES  0.00  2,793.43  2,800.00  2,920.01  2,800.00  2,920.01 


*        TOTAL Solid Waste Expenses 4,200.00 6,990.85 2,800.00 5,143.46 2,800.00 5,143.46


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-251 CEMETERY MAINT  750.00 (257.74)  750.00  0.00  750.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 750.00 (257.74) 750.00 0.00 750.00 0.00


Community Services Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 COMMUNITY SERVICE BEAUTIFICATION  300.00  274.00  300.00  0.00  300.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Community Services Expen 300.00 274.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00


Parks & Recreation Expenses
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2-72-00-00-00-725 RECREATION MISC EXPENSE  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00  174.23  1,000.00  174.23 


2-72-00-00-00-540 RECREATION UTILITIES  2,000.00  1,041.98  0.00  523.21  0.00  523.21 


*        TOTAL Parks & Recreation Expen 3,000.00 1,041.98 1,000.00 697.44 1,000.00 697.44


Community Centre Expenses


2-74-00-00-00-215 COMMUNITY CENTRE EXPENSES  2,000.00  292.83  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-74-00-00-00-250 COMMUNITY CENTRE CONTRACTED 


SERVICE


 2,300.00  3,450.35  2,300.00  1,025.00  2,300.00  1,025.00 


2-74-00-00-00-510 COMMUNITY CENTRE GOODS & SERVICE  1,200.00  857.07  1,200.00  247.03  1,200.00  247.03 


*        TOTAL Community Centre Expense 5,500.00 4,600.25 3,500.00 1,272.03 3,500.00 1,272.03


Development Expenses


2-76-00-00-00-251 ORRSC - GIS REQUISITION  1,000.00  1,398.07  1,000.00  907.20  1,000.00  907.20 


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC - PLANNING REQUISITION  2,100.00  1,589.25  2,100.00  19,612.50  2,100.00  19,612.50 


*        TOTAL Development Expenses 3,100.00 2,987.32 3,100.00 20,519.70 3,100.00 20,519.70


Trans to Reserves


2-40-00-00-00-763 IRRIGATION TRANSFER TO RESERVES  1,900.00  0.00  2,500.00  0.00  2,500.00  0.00 


2-41-00-00-00-763 WATER TRANSFER TO RESERVES  2,150.00  0.00  2,500.00  0.00  2,500.00  0.00 


2-42-00-00-00-763 SEWER TRANSFER TO RESERVE  1,700.00  0.00  5,500.00  0.00  5,500.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Trans to Reserves 5,750.00 0.00 10,500.00 0.00 10,500.00 0.00


Community Support Requisition


2-51-00-00-00-750 REQUISITION - FCSS  1,701.00  1,671.00  1,700.00  0.00  1,700.00  0.00 


2-72-00-00-00-772 REQUISITION - SPRING GLEN PARK  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,500.00 


2-74-00-00-00-771 REQUISITION - CHINOOK ARCH LIBRARY  1,662.00  1,647.54  0.00  790.56  0.00  790.56 


2-98-00-00-00-102 REQUISITION - CHINOOK FOUNDATION  3,095.00  0.00  3,200.00  0.00  3,200.00  0.00 


2-98-00-00-00-115 REQUISITION - WESTWINDS SCHOOL 


DIVISION


 38,114.00  41,209.27  38,900.00  9,528.62  38,900.00  9,528.62 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 46,072.00 46,027.81 45,300.00 11,819.18 45,300.00 11,819.18


**       TOTAL EXPENSES 427,190.00 435,081.41 325,368.00 124,655.38 325,368.00 124,655.38


***      TOTAL REVENUE OVER EXPENSES - 83,516.00 (38,229.77) 13,378.00 (112,378.80) 13,378.00 (112,378.80)


Grants - Capital
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1-00-00-00-00-747 GRANT FIRE TRAINING  0.00  5.36  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-00-00-00-00-843 GRANT - MSI CAPITAL  430,000.00  204,043.18  218,000.00  263,642.00  218,000.00  263,642.00 


1-00-00-00-00-845 GRANT - BMTG - STREETS IMPROVEMENT 


FUND


 11,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-00-00-00-00-847 GRANT - FEDERAL GAS TAX FUND  191,000.00  191,000.00  210,000.00  0.00  210,000.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Grants - Capital 632,000.00 395,048.54 428,000.00 263,642.00 428,000.00 263,642.00


Capital Project Expenses


2-31-00-00-00-762 V MAINT - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL  2,500.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 STREETS - TRANSFERS TO CAP  44,000.00  0.00  20,000.00  0.00  20,000.00  0.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 IRRIGATION - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL  4,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-41-00-00-00-762 WATER - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL  361,000.00  0.00  408,000.00  0.00  408,000.00  0.00 


2-42-00-00-00-762 SEWER - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL  157,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-71-00-00-00-762 PARKS & RECREATION - TRANSFER TO 


CAPTIAL


 75,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Project Expenses 643,500.00 0.00 428,000.00 0.00 428,000.00 0.00


***      TOTAL NET CAPITAL PROJECTS 11,500.00 (395,048.54) 0.00 (263,642.00) 0.00 (263,642.00)


*****    TOTAL NET (INCOME) LOSS 95,016.00 (433,278.31) 13,378.00 (376,020.80) 13,378.00 (376,020.80)


*** End of Report ***
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PART 1   INTRODUCTION 


1.1 Overview 


The Cardston County and Village of Hill Spring 
Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP) has been 
developed to proactively encourage intermunicipal 
information sharing practices when processing 
applications for planning approval within the Plan Area. 
Explicitly, the Plan establishes a mechanism for 
referring redesignation, subdivision and development 
applications within the Plan Area, as well as outlines a dispute resolution process that allows 
mediation to take place at the local level. Policy statements have also been included in support 
of subregional planning initiatives and intermunicipal cost-sharing agreements in the event 
the County and Village collectively determine to explore such joint undertakings in the future. 
While the Plan primarily aspires to facilitate intermunicipal cooperation by promoting 
transparent land use planning decision-making, safeguarding the right to practice agriculture 
within the Plan Area is acknowledged as paramount within the context of southern Alberta’s 
rich farming and ranching heritage. Each municipality thus retains the exclusive authority for 
land use decision-making within its jurisdictional boundaries. 


1.2 Plan Goals 


The intended goals of the Intermunicipal Development Plan are: 


1. To provide for a continuous planning process that facilitates ongoing consultation,
collaboration, and cooperation between the two municipalities.


2. To recognize the importance of the existing agricultural pursuits located within the
Plan Area and the need to minimize fragmentation of these lands.


3. To achieve positive environmental outcomes by employing a comprehensive approach
in support of land use planning and development decision making.


4. To establish a planning approach that will facilitate as well as promote compatible and
complementary land uses.


5. To provide direction to developers regarding preferred development patterns within
the Village and the Plan Area.


Plan Area means the lands 
identified on Map 2 and includes 
those lands within the Village 
adjacent to the shared boundary. 
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1.3 Plan Area Context 


Cardston County and the Village of Hill Spring are located within the Crown of the Continent 
ecosystem, where the plains meet the Rocky Mountains.  As is the case with many rural 
communities, the identity of Hill Spring transcends the corporate limits of the Village and 
extends into the broader agricultural community.  Rural residents enjoy and contribute to the 
sense of place that Hill Spring evokes. 


A variety of opportunities for outdoor recreation exist in the nearby Waterton Reservoir, while 
Waterton-Glacier International Peace Park is only a short drive away.  Excellent vistas of the 
eastern slopes, are provided from the Plan Area and within the Village.  From Chief Mountain 
to the south, the Porcupine Hills to the north, and the Village’s namesake hill to the west, 
one can experience the majesty of the Rockies and the serenity of the eastern slopes.  The 
Plan Area sits between two important water courses in the Belly and Waterton Rivers, and 
drains primarily into the Belly River sub-basin of the Oldman River watershed.  The 
opportunities provided by close proximity to water also present challenges with managing 
surface drainage as well as a need to carefully regulate land use and development in order 
to protect the natural environment. 


The Plan Area is a dryland and irrigated agricultural area, with agriculture being the 
predominant land use (MAP 2, MAP 3, MAP 4). As such, growth pressures have been limited 
and there has not previously been a need to enter into an intermunicipal development plan. 
Naturally, challenges and opportunities may arise on lands surrounding an urban municipality, 
and effective intermunicipal planning recognizes that coordinated communication between 
municipalities is an 
essential component of 
proactively managing 
development. 
Information sharing 
practices between the 
County and Village 
within the Plan Area 
should thus be seen as 
a mutually beneficial 
strategy to embody 
best practices while 
continuing to vest 
exclusive authority for 
land use decision-
making to each 
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municipality within their respective boundaries according to the existing statutory plans and 
land use bylaws currently in effect. 


1.4 Legislative Requirements 


In order to foster cooperation and mitigate conflict between municipalities, the Municipal 
Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter M-26 with amendments (MGA) 
requires all municipalities to complete and adopt an intermunicipal development plan with 
adjacent municipalities to make policies concerning the coordination of land use; future 
growth patterns; protection of the natural environment, water bodies and drainage patterns; 
and the provision of infrastructure. 


Specifically, section 631(1) of the MGA states: 


Two or more councils of municipalities that have common boundaries that are 
not members of a growth region as defined in section 708.01 must, by each 
passing a bylaw in accordance with this Part or in accordance with sections 12 
and 692, adopt an intermunicipal development plan to include those areas of 
land lying within the boundaries of the municipalities as they consider necessary. 


Section 631(2): 


An intermunicipal development plan  


(a) Must address 
(i) the future land use within the area, 
(ii) the manner of and the proposals for future development in the area, 
(iii) the provision of transportation systems for the area, either generally 


or specifically, 
(iv) the co-ordination of intermunicipal programs relating to the physical, 


social and economic development of the area, 
(v) environmental matters within the area, either generally or specifically, 


and 
(vi) any other matter related to the physical, social or economic 


development of the area that the councils consider necessary, 


and 


(b) Must include 
(i) A procedure to be used to resolve or attempt to resolve any conflict 


between the municipalities that have adopted the plan, 
(ii) A procedure to be used, by one or more municipalities, to amend or 


repeal the plan, and 
(iii) Provisions relating to the administration of the plan. 
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Finally, s. 638 establishes the paramountcy of an intermunicipal development plan: 


638(1) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between  


(a)  An intermunicipal development plan, and 
(b)  A municipal development plan, an area structure plan or an area 


redevelopment plan 


In respect of the development of the land to which the intermunicipal 
development plan and the municipal development plan, the area structure 
plan or the area redevelopment plan, as the case may be, apply, the 
intermunicipal development plan prevails to the extent of the conflict or 
inconsistency. 


In addition to MGA requirements, the South Saskatchewan Regional Plan (SSRP) became effective 
September 1, 2014 which introduced additional requirements when addressing land use matters. 
The SSRP uses a cumulative effects management approach to set policy direction for municipalities 
for the purpose of achieving environmental, economic and social goals within the South 
Saskatchewan region until 2024. Pursuant to section 13 of the Alberta Land Stewardship Act
(ALSA), regional plans are legislative instruments.  The SSRP has four key parts: Introduction, 
Strategic Plan, Implementation Plan and Regulatory Details Plan. The Regulatory Details of the 
SSRP are enforceable as law and bind the Crown, decision makers, local governments and all 
other persons while the remaining portions are statements of policy to inform and are not intended 
to have binding legal effect.   


The SSRP is guided by the vision, outcomes and intended directions outlined in the 
Strategic Plan, while the Implementation Plan establishes the objectives and strategies to 
achieve the regional vision.  As part of the Implementation Plan, section 8: Community 
Development includes guidance regarding Planning Cooperation and Integration between 
municipalities with the intention to foster cooperation and coordination between 
neighbouring municipalities and between municipalities and provincial departments, boards 
and agencies.  Section 8 contains the following broad objectives and strategies: 


Planning Cooperation and Integration 


South Saskatchewan Regional Plan 


Objectives: 


• Cooperation and coordination are fostered among all land use planners and 
decision-makers involved in preparing and implementing land plans and
strategies. 


• Knowledge sharing among communities is encouraged to promote the use of 
planning tools and the principles of efficient use of land to address community 
development in the region. 
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Strategies: 


8.1 Work together to achieve the shared environmental, economic, and social 
outcomes in the South Saskatchewan Regional Plan and minimize negative 
environmental cumulative effects. 


8.2 Address common planning issues, especially where valued natural features 
and historic resources are of interests to more than one stakeholder and 
where the possible effect of development transcends jurisdictional 
boundaries. 


8.3 Coordinate and work with each other in their respective planning activities 
(such as in the development of plans and policies) and development 
approval processes to address issues of mutual interest. 


8.4  Work together to anticipate, plan and set aside adequate land with the 
physical infrastructure and services required to accommodate future 
population growth and accompanying community development needs. 


8.5  Build awareness regarding the application of land-use planning tools that 
reduce the impact of residential, commercial and industrial developments 
on the land, including approaches and best practices for promoting the 
efficient use of private and public lands. 


8.6 Pursue joint use agreements, regional services commissions and any other 
joint cooperative arrangements that contribute specially to intermunicipal 
land use planning. 


8.7 Consider the value of intermunicipal development planning to address land 
use on fringe areas, airport vicinity protection plans or other areas of 
mutual interest. 


8.8 Coordinate land use planning activities with First Nations, irrigation 
districts, school boards, health authorities and other agencies on areas of 
mutual interest. 


1.5 Plan Preparation Process & Procedure for Adoption 


In support of the plan preparation process, an analysis of the Plan Area was undertaken to 
review existing land use conditions and constraints, transportation systems, zoning, 
environmental and cultural resources, soils and annexation history, amongst other matters. 
While this research was being performed, a committee consisting of two council members 
from each municipality was formed and meetings were held throughout 2020 and 2021 to 
discuss the contents of the Plan.  A public consultation process consisted of direct mail-outs 
to all Plan Area landowners.  Submissions respecting the Plan were considered by the 
committee, prior to the adoption of the Plan by both municipalities. 
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PART 2    COORDINATED LAND USE MANAGEMENT 


2.1 Plan Area 


The Plan Area, illustrated on MAP 2, consists of approximately 1478 acres (598 ha). This Plan 
was created for the purposes of efficiently managing growth in the Plan Area and assisting 
decision makers in the review of land use redesignations as well as subdivision and 
development proposals by identifying general locations for future land uses and major 
transportation routes and road linkages.  


2.2 General Plan Policies 


Intent 


These general policies are applicable to all lands within the Plan Area and are intended to 
enable the implementation of an effectively coordinated growth management strategy. 


Policies 


2.2.1 Future land use within the Plan Area will continue to be primarily for extensive 
agriculture.  This does not preclude the establishment of non-agricultural land uses 
within the Plan Area. Decisions on applications for non-agricultural land uses shall be 
made in the context of the policies of this Plan and other relevant planning documents. 


2.2.2 Existing land uses with valid development permits issued on or before the date of 
adoption of this Plan may continue to operate in accordance with the provisions of the 
Cardston County Land Use Bylaw, Village of Hill Spring Land Use Bylaw and the MGA, 
as applicable.  New applications for land use redesignations as well as subdivision or 
development on these lands are subject to the policies contained in this Plan. 


2.2.3 The County and Village will continue to consult and cooperate together in discussing 
and planning in a positive, mutually beneficial manner that brings a regional 
perspective to land use decision-making. 


2.2.4 Any application submitted for redesignation of land under the County’s jurisdiction 
may be required to be accompanied by a professionally prepared area structure plan 
containing the information requirements as prescribed in the Cardston County Land 
Use Bylaw and Municipal Development Plan. 
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2.2.5 The required plans, design schemes or other reports in support of major 
subdivisions/developments must be professionally prepared and engineered, and both 
municipalities are encouraged to share with each other the results of these analyses. 


2.2.6 The Village wastewater treatment plant is located in the northeasterly portion SW¼ 
7-4-27-W4M. In accordance with Section 12 of the Subdivision and Development
Regulation, a subdivision or development authority shall not approve an application
for the subdivision or development of a school, hospital, food establishment or
residential use if the application would result in a property line of a lot created by
subdivision, or the establishment of a building site approved for development, being
located within 300 metres of the working area of an operating wastewater treatment
plant (see Map 5).


2.2.7 The Village’s raw water wells are located in the road allowance adjacent to Highway 
505, approximately 2.5 km (1.5 miles) north of the Village.  From there they are 
pumped to the water treatment plant and reservoir located west of the Village, within 
the SE¼ 13-4-28-W4M, and conveyed to the Village and surrounding residents in the 
County through the regional water line system.  Land use and development decisions 
shall ensure the protection of the water source and conveyance system. 


2.3 Agricultural Practices 


Intent 


Agricultural activities are to continue to operate under acceptable farming practices within 
the planning area. 


Policies 


2.3.1 Both municipalities recognize the importance of existing extensive agricultural 
(cultivation and grazing) uses of land within the County’s portion of the Plan Area. 
These agricultural activities are protected under provincial legislation and the impact 
on agricultural land uses should be considered when contemplating proposals for non-
agricultural uses within the Plan Area. 


2.3.2 To help support the sustainability and future growth of the urban centre, a confined 
feeding operation (CFO) exclusion area has been agreed upon with the Village of Hill 
Spring, with regard for prevailing winds and other physical features, so to attempt to 
provide a buffer from the noxious and odorous nature of CFOs. 


2.3.3 New confined feeding operations (CFOs) are not permitted to be established within 
the IDP Plan Area, as illustrated on Map 2. However, any existing CFOs located within 
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the Confined Feeding Exclusion Area are allowed to continue with their existing 
operations and may expand in accordance with the requirements of the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act and Regulations.  Expansions should not negatively impact 
rural and urban residents of the area or the environment. 


2.3.4 If the County is in receipt of a notice of application from the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board (NRCB) for a new or expanded confined feeding operation, the 
County shall forward a copy of the notification to the Village. 


2.3.5 Both municipalities will work cooperatively in encouraging and supporting considerate 
farming practices as it pertains to such matters as the control of dust, weed and 
insects adjacent to developed areas through best management practices and 
guidelines prescribed by Alberta Agriculture and Forestry. 


2.4 Natural Environment, Recreation and Culture 


Intent 


Both municipalities seek to retain and enhance quality of life for residents in the Plan Area 
and across Cardston County and recognize the key function of the natural environment in 
doing so. 


Policies 


2.4.1 The County and Village should explore the potential to co-develop a conceptual plan 
for trails and/or outdoor recreation, either exclusively for the Plan Area or at a more 
expansive, regional scale, potentially in conjunction with the Village of Glenwood. 


2.4.2 The County and Village should investigate the potential for intermunicipal planning 
initiatives that celebrate the distinct cultural heritage, family-oriented lifestyle, and/or 
stunning natural beauty that typifies the Plan Area and Cardston County. 


2.4.3 The County and Village recognize the significance of viewscapes, particularly those of 
the Rocky Mountains looking west from the Plan Area.  The protection of key 
viewscapes should be consideration when dealing with land use and development 
proposals. 


2.4.4 Both municipalities are encouraged to consider the provincial wetland policy when 
making land use decisions in order to sustain and enhance the natural environment. 


2.4.5 Both municipalities may encourage the dedication of environmental reserve or an 
environmental reserve easement where appropriate for watercourses, natural 
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drainage courses, wetland areas and other areas within the Plan Area and recognize 
that the MGA authorizes: 


a. the dedication of a minimum 6-metre strip abutting a water course; and


b. the dedication of lands consisting of a swamp, gully, ravine, coulee or
natural drainage course; and


c. the dedication of land that is subject to flooding or is unstable.


2.4.6 For any development on lands that have been identified within a possible 
environmentally significant area (ESA) or where the municipality within which the 
development is proposed is of the opinion that the land may be within an ESA, the 
developer may be required to conduct an environmental impact assessment (EIA) and 
is responsible for contacting Alberta Environment and Parks. 


2.4.7 Each municipality encourages applicants of subdivision and development proposals to 
consult with the respective municipality, irrigation district, and provincial departments, 
as applicable, regarding water supply, drainage, setbacks from sensitive lands, and 
other planning matters relevant to the natural environment in advance of submitting 
a proposal. 


2.4.8 Lands that have been identified as possibly containing a historic resource value (HRV) 
may be required to conduct a historical resource impact assessment (HRIA) pursuant 
to the Historical Resources Act. 


2.5 Proposals in the Plan Area 


Intent 


Establishing clear policy for land use redesignation, subdivision and development referrals 
within the Plan Area is a transparent municipal growth strategy. 


Policies 


2.5.1 Incompatible land uses as well as fragmentation of lands in the Plan Area shall, where 
possible, be mitigated through transparent and effective coordination between County 
and Village; specifically, by adhering to the referral mechanism detailed in section 3.3. 


2.5.2 Subdivision applications as well as development applications for discretionary uses in 
the Plan Area will have regard for the existing transportation network to ensure the 
development does not compromise the safety and efficiency of the road network, shall 
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give consideration to potential impacts on urban expansion and shall be located so as 
not to preclude the rational future urban expansion of the Village. 


2.5.3 Should the County wish to approve applications for subdivision or development within 
the Plan Area, it may require applicants to submit conceptual scheme that articulates 
the proposed land uses, density and sequencing of development, as well as the 
general location of major transportation routes and public utilities and all other 
requirements listed in the Cardston County Municipal Development Plan and Cardston 
County Land Use Bylaw.   


2.6 Village Infill 


Intent 


Establishing a series of policies for lands adjacent to the Plan Area within the Village of Hill 
Spring will complement future subdivision and development within the Plan Area. 


Policies 


2.6.1 Applications for subdivision in the Village may require the submission of a conceptual 
scheme at the request of the Development Authority of the Village. 


2.6.2 All subdivision applications will be required to include a site plan that identifies: 


(a) A building envelope defining the developable area for each proposed lot that
establishes adequate setbacks to protect potential road rights-of-way consistent
with existing transportation patterns;


(b) Any storm water management facilities, existing and/or proposed, to ensure that
the location of the facilities will not adversely impact existing transportation
systems; and


(c) Any other information required.


2.6.3 A detailed set of Architectural Controls establishing building envelopes to serve as a 
building scheme for the subdivision may be required to ensure buildings and 
improvements are suitably located on the land in relation to future roadways, property 
lines, and development.  The Architectural Controls are to be approved by the Village 
and prepared at the developer’s expense and registered on title. 


2.6.4 Development will be required to maintain adequate setbacks from potential road 
rights-of-way to facilitate efficient transportation patterns. 
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2.6.5 When preparing a development permit application, developers are encouraged to 
consider building orientation with respect to future subdivision potential, adjacent land 
use and transportation. 


2.7 Storm Water Drainage 


Intent 


Both municipalities appreciate best practices for storm water management as they pertain to 
land development and recognize the need to address storm water management early in the 
land development process. 


Policies 


2.7.1 Important drainage corridors and standing water bodies exist within the Plan Area and 
shall be considered at the time of land use and development proposals with the aim 
of mitigating flood risk, improving storm water drainage and protecting sensitive 
environmental areas. 


2.7.2 The County and Village may investigate the feasibility of jointly developing a regional 
storm water management strategy for the plan area. 


2.7.3 If the two municipalities agree to collaborate and formally undertake a more detailed 
study, any consulting and engineering costs involved in creating a plan will be through 
a separate agreement between the two municipalities prior to engaging in any such 
process.  Any agreement to cost share shall be governed by the ICF where applicable. 


2.7.4 Developers will be responsible to provide at their cost an engineered storm water 
management plan and obtain any necessary approvals required by Alberta 
Environment and Parks, specifically those approvals required under the Water Act as 
applicable, as well as any other applicable approvals.  In consideration of this 
requirement, the following policies are also applicable: 


(a) Developers are encouraged to work with neighbours and develop storm water
management systems for a larger area provided it is feasible and professionally
engineered;


(b) Future development of lands within the Plan Area and/or within the Village must
address the handling of storm water and may require a professionally prepared
storm water management plan;


(c) The incorporation of Best Management Practices in the design of storm water
management facilities is to be pursued, where possible.
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2.8 Utilities and Servicing 


Intent 


Both municipalities desire quality development with consistent, efficient and acceptable 
servicing standards that account for and manage cumulative impacts. 


Policies 


2.8.1 Both municipalities recognize the importance of providing utilities efficiently and agree 
to coordinate, wherever possible, to determine appropriate locations and alignments 
of any utility or servicing infrastructure required to serve a proposed subdivision or 
development within the Plan Area, with one another as well as with provincial and 
federal agencies where applicable.   


2.8.2 Prior to any subdivision or development approval which proposes the use of municipal 
water or sewer under the adjacent municipality’s control or management, the 
developer must obtain approval in writing from the applicable municipality regarding 
the use of such infrastructure to serve the development or subdivision. 


2.8.3 When municipal water and wastewater services are proposed: 


(a) It is the responsibility of the County to enter into an agreement with the Village 
for the provision of such services, whether on behalf of itself or a developer.  Any 
costs associated with connecting to municipal water and wastewater, including 
extending waterlines and installing associated infrastructure will be defined in the 
agreement and typically will be at the expense of the developer and any such 
agreement shall be in accordance with the applicable Joint Services Agreement 
(2013) and/or Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework (2020), or a successor 
document; 


(b) The location of the required infrastructure to provide those services may be 
approved by the County based on discussions and negotiations between the 
County, the Village and the developer. 


2.8.4 When municipal water and wastewater services are not available for any subdivision 
or development proposal located 0.8 km (0.5 miles) or closer to the Village boundary, 
the developer may be required to enter into Deferred Service Development Agreement 
with the County, requiring connection and/or provision of such infrastructure in the 
future when warranted.  Considerations for defining when such infrastructure may be 
required include, but are not limited to, private system failure, proposed replacement 
of the system or subsequent subdivision of the property. 
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2.8.5 When municipal water and wastewater services are available to service any proposed 
subdivision or development, the developer may be required to connect to such 
services. 


2.9 Transportation 


Intent 


Policies are intended to foster enhanced coordination in the provision of linked road networks 
to ensure that these roads are functional, compatible and logical in order to facilitate orderly 
and planned growth that does not compromise future development. 


Policies 


2.9.1 Integrating the future road network in the Plan Area to the grid-pattern road network 
within the Village is a priority of this Plan, as it provides for efficient vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation as well as future extension of municipal water and wastewater 
infrastructure. 


2.9.2 The County may require dedication of road right-of-way on the final plan of subdivision 
for any proposal located 0.5 km or closer to the Village boundary. 


2.9.3 If road dedication or road improvement is a condition of subdivision approval, the 
developer will be required to enter into a development agreement for road 
construction or improvement and associated costs. 


2.9.4 Road construction may be deferred to a later subdivision or development stage subject 
to a deferred servicing/development agreement with either the County or Village as 
applicable. 


2.9.5 The County and Village will consult with Alberta Transportation regarding the 
implementation of this Plan.  A developer may be required to conduct traffic studies 
with respect to impact and access onto Highway 800 and any upgrading identified by 
traffic studies will be implemented at the sole cost of the developer and to the 
satisfaction of Alberta Transportation. Both municipalities shall endeavour to maintain 
open dialogue with Alberta Transportation respecting any proposed changes to the 
provincial highway system that may impact planning at the municipal and 
intermunicipal levels.  
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PART 3   PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 
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PART 3   PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 


3.1 Plan Validity and Amendment 


Intent 


It is recognized that this Plan may require amendment from time to time to keep it current. 
This Plan does not contain a “sunset” clause, but rather, includes a process for review to 
ensure its relevancy. 


Policies 


3.1.1 This Plan comes into effect on the date it is separately adopted by both County and 
Village. Either municipality may request that the Plan be rescinded and replaced with 
a new version upon serving written notice to the other municipality. The dispute 
resolution process stipulated in section 3.4 will be undertaken should the municipalities 
be unable to reach an agreement. 


3.1.2 Amendments to this Plan may be necessary from time to time to accommodate agreed 
upon changes or to address unforeseen circumstances not specifically addressed in 
the Plan; any amendments must be adopted by both councils using the procedures 
established in the MGA. No amendment shall come into force until such time as both 
municipalities adopt the amending bylaw. 


3.1.3 Requests for amendments to this Plan by parties other than the County or Village may 
be made to the municipality in which the request originated and be accompanied by 
the applicable processing fee to each municipality for amending a statutory plan. 


3.1.4 Upon agreement by both municipalities to a proposed amendment to the Plan, a joint 
public hearing may be held in accordance with the MGA. 


3.1.5 The Plan Committee is encouraged to maintain an ongoing dialogue with respect to 
land use planning matters of mutual interest by meeting annually to review the policies 
of the Plan.  The Committee may make recommendations to the respective councils 
concerning amendments to this Plan to ensure the policies continue to accurately 
reflect the needs of both municipalities. 
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3.2 Intermunicipal Development Plan Committee 


Intent 


The establishment of the Plan Committee is intended to facilitate continued cooperation and, 
wherever possible, the resolution of potential conflict through a consensus-based decision 
making process. 


Policies 


3.2.1 A Plan Committee will be established between the County and Village for the purposes 
of ensuring continued communication between the municipalities and to provide a 
forum to review and comment on matters that may have an impact on either 
municipality. 


3.2.2 The Plan Committee will be an advisory body and may make comments or 
recommendations to the County and Village.  In its advisory capacity, the Committee 
does not have decision making authority or powers with respect to planning matters 
in the County or Village. 


3.2.3 The Committee will be comprised of four elected officials, two from the County and 
two from the Village.  The Committee may, at its discretion, also include whatever 
number of resource personnel deemed appropriate in a non-voting capacity.  A 
resource person may serve as secretary to the Committee and is responsible for 
recording the minutes of all Committee meetings and preparing the recommendations 
of the Committee. 


3.2.4 Members of the Committee will make their best efforts to attend each meeting. A 
chairman will be selected at each committee meeting. 


3.2.5 Changes to the Committee format, composition, roles, responsibilities or any aspect 
of its existence or operation may be requested by either municipality.  Council may 
refer any proposed changes to the Committee for recommendation.  Any changes to 
the Plan require an amendment to the Plan and adoption in accordance with section 
3.1.2 of Plan Validity and Amendment. 


3.2.6 The County and Village agree that the purpose of the Committee is to: 


(a) Provide a forum for discussion of land use matters within the Plan Area;


(b) Provide recommendation(s) for proposed amendments to the Plan;


(c) Discuss and address issues regarding Plan implementation;
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(d) Review and provide comment on referrals under section 3.3 and any other matters
referred to the Committee;


(e) Provide recommendation(s) regarding intermunicipal issues in an effort to avoid
a dispute; and


(f) Provide a forum for discussion of any other matter of joint interest identified by
either municipality.


3.2.7 Meetings of the Committee may be held at the request of either municipality. 


3.2.8 A matter may be brought before the Committee by the administrative staff of either 
the County or Village.  Where a matter involving the two municipalities cannot be 
resolved to the satisfaction of the Committee, the Committee is authorized to initiate 
the conflict resolution system in this Plan, section 3.4 Dispute Resolution. 


3.2.9 If a matter has been referred to the Committee for comment, the supporting 
documentation will be sent to Committee members prior to the meeting.  If all 
Committee members respond with no concerns regarding the referred matter, the 
meeting may be cancelled at the Committee’s discretion. 


3.3 Intermunicipal Referrals 


Intent 


To establish a process for consistent and transparent sharing of information necessary to 
make decisions in accordance with the intent of the Plan. 


Policies 


Joint Committee Meeting Prior To Application Submission 


3.3.1 The municipality in receipt of an inquiry or preliminary submission shall contact the 
other municipality to discuss the possibility of holding a joint meeting between an 
applicant and the Committee prior to the submission of an application for proposals 
that: 


(a) Utilize Village servicing;


(b) May impact drainage on lands within the Village or the Plan Area;


(c) May have the potential to impact lands within the Village or the Plan Area by
causing noise, dust, odour or other nuisances; and
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(d) Any subdivision application within the Plan Area or within the Village adjacent to
the common boundary.


3.3.2 The intention of the meeting is to understand the scope of the project and determine 
potential impacts including but not limited to servicing, drainage and road 
requirements. 


Referral Process 


3.3.3 Any of the following that affect lands in the Plan Area or land within the Village 
adjacent to the corporate boundary will be forwarded to the other municipality for 
comment prior to a decision being made on the application or document: 


• Municipal Development Plans
• Area Structure Plans
• Area Redevelopment Plans
• Conceptual Schemes
• Overlay Plans
• Land Use Bylaws
• Land Use Redesignations
• Subdivision Applications
• Development Applications (Discretionary Uses)


The receiving municipality may request the above-mentioned document(s) or 
application(s) be referred to the Plan Committee for comment prior to a decision being 
rendered. 


3.3.4 The municipalities are encouraged to refer to each other for comment major land use 
or planning matters that have the potential to impact the other jurisdiction, even if it 
involves lands that may not be located within the Plan Area or does not fall within the 
list in Section 3.3.3. 


3.3.5 A Designated Notification Area (DNA) is shown on Map 2. Cardston County shall notify 
the Village of Hill Spring of any subdivision applications and/or discretionary use 
development applications within this area. The notification process shall follow the 
process outlined in the County’s land use bylaw for development applications.  


Response Timelines and Consideration of Referral Responses 


3.3.6 The receiving municipality will, from the date of mailing, have the following timelines 
to review and provide comment on intermunicipal referrals: 


(a) 15 days for development applications,


(b) 19 days for subdivision applications, and
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(c) 30 days for all other intermunicipal referrals.


3.3.7 In the event that an intermunicipal referral is forwarded to the Plan Committee for 
review and comment, the municipality requesting the committee meeting may include 
a written request for an extension of the referral timelines indicated in 3.3.6.  If an 
extension request is included, the referral timelines in 3.3.6 do not apply. 


3.3.8 Where deemed necessary, a Committee meeting will be scheduled as soon as possible 
and a written response from the Committee will be provided within five days of the 
Committee meeting date. 


3.3.9 In the event that either municipality and/or the Committee does not reply within, or 
request an extension to, the response time for intermunicipal referrals stipulated in 
section 3.3.8, it will be assumed that the responding municipality and/or Committee 
has no comment or objection to the referred planning document or application. 


3.3.10 Written comments from the receiving municipality and/or the Plan Committee that are 
provided prior to or at the public hearing or meeting will be considered by the 
municipality in which the plan, scheme, land use bylaw, subdivision application, 
development application or amendment is being proposed. 
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Figure 1: IDP Referral Mechanism Flowchart 
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3.4 Dispute Resolution 


Intent 


The intent of the dispute resolution process is to maximize opportunities for discussion and 
review in order to resolve areas of disagreement early in the process.  Despite the best efforts 
of both municipalities, it is understood that disputes may arise from time to time affecting 
land use within the Plan boundary.  The following process is intended to settle disputes 
through consensus and minimize the need for formal mediation. 


Policies 


General Agreement 


3.4.1 The County and Village agree that it is important to avoid dispute by ensuring that the 
Plan is adhered to as adopted, including full circulation of any permit or application 
that may affect the municipality or as required in the Plan and prompt enforcement of 
the Plan policies. 


3.4.2 Prior to the meeting of the Committee, each municipality through its administration, 
will ensure the facts of the issue have been investigated and clarified, and information 
is made available to both parties.  Staff meetings are encouraged to discuss possible 
solutions. 


3.4.3 The Committee should discuss the issue or dispute with the intent to seek a 
recommended solution by consensus. 


Dispute Resolution Process 


In the event a dispute arises, the following process will be adhered to. 


3.4.4 When a potential intermunicipal issue comes to the attention of either municipality 
relating to a technical or procedural matter, such as inadequate notification or 
prescribed timelines, misinterpretation of Plan policies, or a clerical error regarding 
the policies of this Plan, either municipality’s land use bylaw, or any other plan 
affecting lands in the Plan Area, it will be directed to the administrators of each 
municipality.  The administrators will review the technical or procedural matter and if 
both administrators are in agreement, take action to rectify the matter. 


3.4.5 Should either municipality identify an issue related to this Plan that may result in a 
dispute that cannot be administratively resolved under section 3.4.4 or any other issue 
that may result in a dispute, the municipality should contact the other and request 
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that a Plan Committee meeting be scheduled to discuss the issue.  The Committee will 
review the issue and attempt to resolve the matter by consensus. 


3.4.6 Should the Plan Committee be unable to arrive at a consensus, the administration of 
each municipality will schedule a joint meeting of the two councils to discuss possible 
solutions and attempt to reach consensus on the issue. 


3.4.7 Should the councils be unable to resolve the matter, either municipality may initiate a 
formal mediation process to facilitate resolution of the issue. 


Figure 2: IDP General Dispute Process 
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Filing an Intermunicipal Dispute under the MGA 


3.4.8 In the case of a dispute involving the adoption of a statutory plan, land use bylaw or 
amendment to such, within 30 days of adoption, the municipality initiating the dispute 
may, without prejudice, file an appeal to the Municipal Government Board under 
section 690(1) of the MGA so that the provincial statutory right and timeframe to file 
an appeal is not lost. 


3.4.9 The appeal may then be withdrawn, without prejudice, if a solution or agreement is 
reached between the two municipalities prior to the Municipal Government Board 
meeting.  This is to acknowledge and respect that the time required to seek resolution 
or mediation may not be able to occur within the 30 day appeal filing process as 
outlined in the MGA. 


Note: Using section 690(1) of the MGA is the final stage of dispute settlement, where the 
municipalities request the Municipal Government Board to intercede and resolve the 
issue. 


3.5 Plan Adoption and Implementation 


The policies in the Plan constitute the framework for decision making on proposals for land 
use redesignations, subdivision and development within the Plan Area. The MGA stipulates 
that all statutory plans adopted by a municipality must be consistent with each other, and 
moreover that an intermunicipal development plan shall prevail if an inconsistency arises with 
another statutory plan adopted by the municipality. It follows that the following process and 
policies will need to be implemented by each municipality. 


Adoption 


3.5.1 The County and Village prepare the Plan in accordance with the requirements of the 
MGA, including advertising and conducting a public consultation process, prior to 
passing the respective adopting bylaws. 


3.5.2 This Plan comes into effect on the date it was adopted by both the County and Village, 
after receiving three readings of the bylaw(s). 
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Implementation 


3.5.3 The County and Village agree that to ensure that the policies of this Plan are properly, 
fairly and reasonably implemented. 


3.5.4 Upon adoption of the Plan, the County and Village will each review and amend its land 
use bylaw to conform to the policies of this Plan. Furthermore, the County will review 
and amend its municipal development plan to ensure it reflects the principles, goals 
and policies of this Plan, while the Village will ensure the same in respect of any 
municipal development plan it adopts in the future. 


3.5.5 To achieve continued success in implementing the Plan and help ensure that the goals 
and coordinated land use planning approach emphasized is successful, the County 
and Village agree to: 


(a) Require that all area structure plans or conceptual scheme proposals, submitted 
by a developer within the Plan Area, conform to the principles and policies of the 
Plan; and 


(b) Consult on an ongoing basis, and refer to each other, major land use or planning 
matters that have the potential to impact the other jurisdiction, even if it involves 
land that may not be located within the Plan Area. 


3.5.6 The County and Village are encouraged to regularly review the Plan to ensure the 
policies remain relevant and continue to meet the needs of both municipalities. 


3.5.7 The County and Village are bound by the SSRP and will consider the following in 
respect of the SSRP legislation: 


(a) The County and Village agree that they will comply with the strategies contained 
in the SSRP and are of the opinion this Plan aligns with those strategies; 


(b) If, following adoption of the Plan, it is subsequently determined that additional 
amendments are needed to the Plan to adhere to provincial requirements of the 
SSRP, both municipalities will review and discuss possible amendments through 
the Plan Committee. 


3.5.8 When any amendments to the Plan are proposed, the municipalities will follow the 
process and policies as outlined in the Plan.  No amendment shall come into force 
until such time as both municipalities adopt the amending bylaw. 
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Cardston County 
 
 
 


P.O. Box 580, Cardston, Alberta TOK OKO 
Phone: (403) 653-4977 Fax: (403) 653-1126 Email: office@cardstoncounty.com 


 


 
May 26, 2021 
 
 
Janet Edwards 
Village of Hill Spring 
Village Manager 
P.O Box 40 
Hill Spring, AB, T0K 1EO 
 
 
RE: IDP Draft May 2021 
 
 
Janet:  
 
Cardston County Council reviewed your letter dated May 20, 2021 at our May 25, 2021 Council 
meeting. After more discussion on the topic, Council would like to reconfirm its position on the 
IDP Plan area and the CFO area. We feel this is ample land mass to protect the Village of Hill 
Spring, ensures landowners can operate their family farms without too many restrictions, and 
also protects the Village’s namesake. We are willing to move the referral area to match the plan 
area and CFO area, please see attached map.  
 
Additionally, we would like to draw your attention to sections 3.2.8 and 3.2.9 in the IDP 
document between Cardston County and the MD of Pincher Creek, which allows the 
municipalities to work together to adjust as needed. We are aware of Council’s desire to protect 
some sensitive area around the Village, but the start of the Belly River is many miles to the 
South of Hill Spring within the County. The County Council wants to ensure longevity of both 
the environment and agriculture activities and does not believe increasing the Hill Spring Plan 
area will achieve that.  
 
For your information, Cardston County just passed a new Land Use Bylaw and included within 
the document the following definition,  
 


“Designated Notification Area means a mutually agreed to area of land, lying outside an 
intermunicipal plan boundary, whereby a subdivision application and /or discretionary 
use development application are referred to an adjacent municipality for comment before 
a decision is rendered by the municipality having jurisdiction”.  


 
This will help to ensure all notices for subdivision or discretionary items are forwarded to the 
Village for comment before approval or defeat.  We believe the designated notification area 
gives better protection to the wellheads as we include the parcels North of Highway 505. 



mailto:office@cardstoncounty.com





P.O. Box 580, Cardston, Alberta TOK OKO 
Phone: (403) 653-4977 Fax: (403) 653-1126 Email: office@cardstoncounty.com 


 
We truly want to reach an agreement with the Village on the Plan and CFO Area’s, but we also 
do not want to limit our landowners in the future. We feel that the plan and CFO areas outlined 
and agreed to at our last meeting were both fair, and well aligned with standard IDP practices.   
 
We welcome your response and are committed to continued work with the Village in reaching a 
satisfactory conclusion to this agreement. If your Council would like, we could arrange for 
another meeting to discuss this in more detail. Let me know what direction you would like to 
proceed in. 
 
 
Respectfully,    
 
 
 
 
Murray L. Millward B.mgt, CLGM, CTAJ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



mailto:office@cardstoncounty.com
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1 Admin Report 2021.06.15 
 
 
 
 


 


CAO REPORT 


COUNCIL MEETING June 15, 2021 


This report is to provide council with an update on the activities and projects of the Village; the 


intent is to provide council with a brief update of noteworthy activities and events. 


 


IDP 


Letters were sent to Cardston County Council with proposed changes to the IDP Draft. I received 


a revised IDP and it was sent out to all the council to review. Cardston County did not accept the 


Village Council proposals. 


Capital Projects 


Darrin from Wilde Bros Engineer sent out RFP for South Water Loop Phase 2 and bids are due 


on June 17, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m. A mandatory site meeting was held with engineer, contractors and 


Admin on June 10th.   
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2 Admin Report 2021.06.15 
 
 
 
 


North water Loop project is set to begin in June weather providing. 


The 2021 culvert project has been completed. 


Land Use Bylaw  
Day to day office work 
Month End Procedures 
Tax Certificates 
Cash Receipting  
Banking 
Accounting updates 


Letters/Newsletter 


 


 


 


 








MINUTES OF THE CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION MEETING HELD 
APRIL 14, 2021 VIA ZOOM. 


Members Present: 
 
Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston    Richard Van Ee – Town of Magrath 
Robert Edwards – Village of Stirling   Randy Taylor – County of Warner 
Wayne Harris – Cardston County  Tyler Lindsay – Village of Warner  
Bryce Coppieters – Town of Raymond  Tanya Smith – Village of Coutts 
David Rolfson – Village of Glenwood 
   
       
Others Present: 
 
Abe Tinney - SEO  Lee Beazer – Operator  Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
Chandra Deaust – Avail  Bob Roach & Keith Talbot – North Patch Environmental (Fog Dog) 
        
Commenced at 4:32 pm   


Randy Taylor in the Chair. 


AGENDA 


Richard Van Ee moved that the agenda be adopted as presented.     Carried 


MINUTES      


Bryce Coppieters moved that the minutes of the March 10, 2021 board meeting be adopted as 
presented.            Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
DELEGATION 
Chandra Deaust, from Avail, went over the audited financial books for the 2020 year.  Avail found the 
books to be in order.   
 
Robert Edwards arrived at 4:47 p.m. 
 
David Rolfson arrived at 4:49 p.m. 
 
Chandra Deaust excused at 4:51 p.m. 
 
21-17 Gerry Selk moved to accept the audited 2020 Financial Statement as performed by Avail. Carried 
 
The SEO presented a five-year lease agreement for 130 acres with Leonard Carlson as follows: 67 acres 
@ $30/acre, 38 acres @ $6.30/acre and 25 acres for free for a total income of $2,249/year. 
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21-18 Wayne Harris moved to sign a five-year lease agreement with Leonard Carlson as follows: 67 
acres @ $30/acre, 38 acres @ $6.30/acre and 25 acres for free for a total income of 
$2,249/year.           Carried 


 
 
The SEO advised the board of an incident on March 15, 2021 were an employee hit an overhead power 
line.  The tarp was left open and vertical on the trailer.  The Safety Committee meet to discuss the 
incident.  A written warning has been issued to the employee and toolbox talks have been completed. 
 
Bryce Coppieters moved to file the incident report for information.         Filed 
 
The Operator reported that 798.27 tonnes of waste were delivered to the Landfill in March 2021 making 
the year-to-date total 2,292.86 and no waste has been diverted.   
 
The Operator advised that the Packer is due to arrive any day.  The Packer has been delayed at customs 
and Finning is working on getting it cleared. 
 
The Operator reported that the year-end report has been completed by Wilde Brothers Engineering (see 
correspondence) and sent to Alberta Environment. 
 
The Operator advised that the Transfer Station evaluations have been completed and he has attached 
the report to the agenda package for the board to review.  The board discussed who would like to turn 
the Transfer Stations and/or employees over to the Commission.  The Operator is still waiting for the 
contractor’s information on each transfer station. 
 
Richard Van Ee moved to approve the Operator’s report.      Carried 
 
 


 
DELEGATION 
 
Bob Roach and Keith Talbot, from Fog Dog, presented a waste to energy plan to create biofuels from 
waste.  Fog Dog would like a long-term commitment of 10-20 years and require a minimum of 5 acres of 
land to set-up operations.  
 
Excused at 5:44 p.m. 
 
21-19 Robert Edwards moved to have administration gather more information from Fog Dog.  Carried 


Financial Statement 


The Financial Statements for February 28, 2021 and March 31, 2021 were reviewed.    


Gerry Selk moved to accept the February 28, 2021 and March 31, 2021 Financial Statements.    Carried 


Approval of Bills  


Bills for the month of March 2021 were reviewed.  


Tanya Smith moved to approve the bills for March 2021.        Carried 
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The board discussed the hazardous waste program funding that has been cancelled by the government.  
The board would like the SEO to gather more information and bring to the next board meeting. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 


A letter from Wilde Brothers Engineering Ltd regarding the 2020 Annual Report. 


Gerry Selk moved to file the Wilde Brothers Engineering report for information.    Carried 


ADJOURNMENT 


Tanya Smith moved meeting adjourned. 


Adjournment at 5:51 p.m.  


Next Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. via Zoom. 


 
__________________________________   
Chairman 








Alberta SouthWest Regional Economic Development Alliance 
International Economic Development Council (IEDC) Accredited Economic Development Organization (AEDO) 


Green Destinations Top 100 Sustainable Global Destinations and Top 3 Best of the Americas 
 


Box 1041 Pincher Creek AB T0K 1W0 
403-627-3373 (office) 403-627-0244 (cell)  
bev@albertasouthwest.com 
www.albertasouthwest.com 


Alberta SouthWest Bulletin June 2021 
Regional Economic Development Alliance (REDA) Update 


 


❖ International Economic Development Week 
What are the goals of #EconDevWeek? 


• Articulate: Voice the role and value of economic development in our local economy; 


• Organize: Strengthen support for the work of our economic development organizations;  


• Amplify: Spread the message and celebrate our economic developers! 
 


AlbertaSW participated in Economic Developers Alberta (EDA) celebrations the week of May 9-15, 2021. 


The EDA goal was to have 25 communities, province-wide, formally proclaim Economic Development 


Week …. 34 municipal councils joined in! https://www.edaalberta.ca/Economic-Development-Week 
 


Communities and regions also celebrated in unique ways, including AlbertaSW! 


Our municipalities took time to “Shine a Light on Economic Development” by  


painting the EDA logo in the snow at Pass Powderkeg ski hill; lighting up town 


marquees in Cardston and Stavely; incorporating the EDA logo into a photo of the Hill Spring solar 


farm, into an iconic landscape in the MD of Pincher Creek; in the clouds over Waterton Park, and in the 


grip of the Cowley dinosaur. Very creative and fun! See all the great photos posted at this link! 


https://www.edaalberta.ca/resources/Documents/AlbertaSW%20Shines%20a%20Light%20on%20EDA.pdf 
 


❖ Economic Developers Alberta “Outstanding Young Professional 2021” 
Congratulations to Marie Everts, Marketing, Events and Economic Development 


Officer for the Town of Pincher Creek for receiving this honour at the recent EDA 


conference. https://www.edaalberta.ca/2021-Awards-of-Excellence-Winners 
 


Brady Schnell, EDO, Town of Claresholm was also recognized by AlbertaSW and 


SouthGrow for contributions to his community and to our regions. 
 


AlbertaSW is the big winner with such creative and dedicated economic developers! 
 


❖ Another AlbertaSW AGM Zooms by 
2021 AGM held on June 2, was a short meeting on a hot evening! 


Board reviewed and accepted financial statements, year end reports and operations plan.  


If you wish information about, or copies of, these reports, contact bev@abertasouthwest.com 


We hope to have a regional gathering in the fall to celebrate some great outcomes in a challenging year. 


 


Thank you 
to the guidance and commitment from the AlbertaSW Board, our Councils, CAOs, municipal staff, EDOs, 


EDCs, Community Futures, Chambers, federal and provincial government agencies, and industry 


partners who help make our region a success! 



mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com
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MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD JUNE 3, 2021 AT 
THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston     Tom Nish – Cardston County  
Don Shideler – Village of Hill Spring   Tim Court – Town of Cardston (via phone) 
Royce Leavitt – Cardston County 
                 
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer                         
                               
Commenced at 5:01 p.m.  
  
Gerry Selk in the chair.                                                              
  
Opening Prayer: Royce Leavitt 
  
AGENDA  
  
Tom Nish moved to approve the agenda.                     Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the May 3, 2021, meeting was discussed.    


Royce Leavitt moved to accept the minutes of the May 3, 2021 meeting.             Carried  
 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
The board made a motion via email regarding the purchase of a fire truck as time was of the essence to 
receive the quote presented at the last board meeting.  The fire truck will be ready for the fall of 2022. 
 
21-01   Tim Court moved to purchase a fire truck.     Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin reported that the May Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 3 MVC’s, 2 grass fires, 1 
structure fire (Cardston County), 2 miscellaneous, 2 false alarms, and 1 MFR. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the fire call out statistics are up 88% compared to last year. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the Auditor will be here next Wednesday to perform an audit of the 2020 
financial books. 
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Danny Melvin advised that the Quality Inspection for businesses within the Authority needs some changes 
made. Danny is working with the Cardston County and Town of Cardston to look at doing annual 
inspections on each business. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the Townsite Manager in Waterton has resigned, and they are transitioning to a 
new manager.  Danny has delivered the invoices for the summer contract. 
 
Danny Melvin presented the Fire Response Billing – within the Cardston County Policy for the board to 
review. 
 
21-02 Tim Court moved to approve the Fire Response Billing – within the Cardston County Policy. 
               Carried 
 
Don Shideler is concerned about the placement of some of the equipment within the Fire Hall.  Danny 
Melvin advised that the lockers are on wheels and can be moved out of the way quickly.  Danny will look at 
different formats for the building expansion and get some drawings completed. 
 
Don Shideler moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                      Carried  
 
Danny Melvin advised that a letter from the Safety Codes Council has been received and the Authority has 
received clearance. 
 
Danny Melvin has been working with Mid River to align staff members to proper assignments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  


Tom Nish moved to adjourn.                     Carried  


Adjournment at 5:27 p.m. 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 2, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 
Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   
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CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS


iNDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To: The Board of
Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Services Commission


Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Services
Commission which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the
statements of operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.


In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the commission as at December 31, 2020, its results of operations, change in net financial
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.


Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the commission in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.


Other Matter
The statement of financial position and statement of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2019 were engaged to be reviewed and no audit opinion was expressed.
Additional audit work was performed on opening balances to ensure an unqualified audit opinion could
be expressed for the year ended December 31, 2020.


Emphasis of Matter
We draw your attention to the significant account policy 2g(iv), which describes the changes in
accounting estimates. Our audit is not qualified in respect of this matter.


Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the commission’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the commission or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the commission’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT, continued


Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.


Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the commission’s internal control.


Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.


Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the commission’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.


Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.


We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.


Lethbridge, Alberta


April 14, 2021 Chartered Professional Accountants
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CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION


As at December 31, 2020


December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019


Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 4)
Trade and other receivables (note 5)


Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Landfill closure and post-closure liability (note 6)


Net financial assets


Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Inventory for consumption
Tangible capital assets (schedule 1)


Accumulated surplus (note 9, schedule 2)


$ 1,330,160    $ 1,131,281 $ 1,427,820
30,231 100,202 43,155


1,360,391 1,231,483 1,470,975


34,369 30,459 58,651
72,723 77,055 68,170


107,092 107,514 126,821


1,253,299 1,123,969 1,344,154


14,644 12,496 11,588
933 486


1,797,407 934,124 746,530


1,812,051 947,553 758,604


$ 3,065,350 $     2,071,522 $     2,102,758


Approved on behalf of the board:


Member ~ ’,,’~" _~_ ///~.,,~ Member







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


Budget 2020 2019
(unaudited)


Reven u e
Service fees charged to commission members
Other revenues
Other service fees and sales of goods
Investment income
Gain on disposal of capital assets


Expenses
Materials, goods and utilities
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contracted and general services
Engineering fees
Bank charges and short-term interest
Closure and post-closure costs
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets


801,406 $ 822,232 $ 766,047
6,100 211,562 75,855


57,914 110,885 62,692
13,000 12,450 25,500
- 10,584 -


878,420     1,167,713 930,094


366,700
285,400


72,000
4,000
3,500


305,374 448,280
284,888 269,230


57,893 57,203
4,209 978
3,287 2,324


(4,332) 8,885
- 25,580


220,066 148,850146,582


878,182 871,385 961,330


Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 238 296,328 (31,236)
before other


Other
Contributed Assets - 697,500


Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 238 993,828 (31,236)


Accumulated surplus~ beginning of year 2,071~522 2,071,522 2,102,758


Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 2,071,760 $ 3,065,350 $ 2,071,522







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


Budget 2020 2019
(unaudited)


Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $


Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Contributed assets


Net change in inventory for consumption
Net change in prepaid expenses


Change in net financial assets
Net financial assets, beginning of year


Net financial assets, end of year


238


146,582


$ 993,828 $ (31,236)


(401,522) (362,024)
220,066 148,850
(10,584) 25,580
26,257


(697,500)


146,582 (863,283) (187,594)


933 (447)
(2,148) (908)


(1,215) (1,355)


146,820 129,330 (220,185)
1,123,969 1,123,969 1,344,154


1,270,789    $      1,253,299    $     1,123,969







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


2020 2019


Operating transactions
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Adjustments for items which do not affect cash


(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Closure and post closure costs
Contributed assets


Net change in non-cash working capital items
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Inventory for consumption
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities


Cash provided by operating transactions


Capital transactions
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets


Cash applied to capital transactions


$ 993,828 $ (31,236)


(10,584) 25,580
220,066 148,850


(4,332) 8,885
(697,500) -


501,478 152,079


69,971 (57,047)
(2,148) (908)


933 (447)
3,910 (28,192)


574,144 65,485


26,257
(401,522) (362,024)


(375,265) (362,024)


Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents


Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year


Cash and cash equivalents, end of year


198,879    (296,539)


1,131,281 1,427,820


1,330,160 $    1,131,281


Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash (bank indebtedness) (note 4)
Internally restricted cash (note 4)


$ 286,602 $ (11,743)
1 ~043,558 1,143,024


$ 1,330,160    $     1,131,281
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CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


Nature of operations


Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Services Commission is constituted under the Municipal
Government Act and was approved by the Minister of Municipal Affairs on March 17, 2020 for
the purpose of constructing, maintaining, controlling and managing a regional solid waste
collection and disposal facility.


The members of the Commission are the Town of Cardston, Town of Raymond, Town of
Magrath, Town of Milk River, Cardston County, County of Warner, Blood Band, Village of Hill
Spring, Village of Glenwood, Village of Warner, Village of Coutts and Village of Stirling.


The Commission is exempt from income taxation under Section 149 of the Canada Income Tax
Act.


Significant accounting policies


The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards and reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and change in the financial
position of the Commission, Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the
commission are as follows:


(a) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expense during the period. Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial statements
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.


A significant area requiring the use of management’s estimates was the landfill closure/post-
closure liability. The liability was calculated based on estimated future cash flows required
to cover the costs of landfill closure and groundwater monitoring.


The effect on the financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could
be significant.


(b) Basis of presentation
These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.


(c) Budget amounts
The budget amounts presented on the statement of operations are taken from the
Commission’s annual budget. Certain budget amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s financial statement presentation.







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


=
Significant accounting policies, continued


(d) Revenue recognition
Service fees and sales of goods are recognized as revenue in the period in which the
service is delivered or in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenue.


Restricted investment income is recognized in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.


Government transfers are recognized in the p_eriod when the related expenses are incurred,
services performed, or the tangible capital assets acquired.


(e)


(f)


Investments
The Commission has elected to classify all of its investments at amortized cost. When there
has been a loss in value that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written
down to recognize the loss.


Landfill closure and post-closure
Pursuant to the Alberta Environment Protection and Enhancement Act, the Commission is
required to fund the closure of its landfill site and provide for post-closure care of the
facility. Closure and post-closure activities include the final clay cover, landscaping, as well
as surface and ground water monitoring, leachate control and visual inspection. The
requirement is being provided for over the estimated remaining life of the landfill site based
on usage.


Avail ~ c~ .....~ Pro~.,,~o.o~.=o.4.. 8







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


=
Significant accounting policies, continued


(g) Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the normal course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the
consolidated Change in Net Financial Assets for the year.


(i) Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life as follows:


Years


Buildings
Engineered structures - gravel roads
Engineered structures - fences
Machinery and equipment
Power equipment


5O
15
10
2O
10


One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition. Assets under
construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.


Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the date
of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.


(iii) Inventories
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


Significant accounting policies, continued


(iv) Change in accounting estimates
During the year management and the Board revised their tangible capital asset policy
to better reflect the useful lives of their assets. In the past tangible capital assets were
amortized using the declining balance method. Management determined that the
straightqine method of amortization would better reflect the useful lives of the assets.
The effect of the change in current year amortization expense is an increase of $4,310.


The change in estimate has been applied prospectively.


Rate changes consisted of the following:


Buildings
Engineering structures - gravel roads
Engineering structures - fences
Machinery and equipment
Power equipment


2020 2019
50 years SL 5% DB


,15 years SL 20% DB
10 years SL 20% DB
20 years SL 20% DB
10 years SL 30% DB


Impact of the change in the basis of accounting


These are the Commission’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.


There were no changes as a result of the adoption of these standards other than to comply with
the presentation format.


Cash and cash equivalents


Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and internally restricted cash. The internally restricted
cash is for capital replacement and post-closure costs.


2020 2019


Cash (bank indebtedness) $ 286,602 $ (11,743)
Internally restricted 1,043,558 1 ~143,024


$ 1,330,160 $ 1,131,281


=
Trade and other receivables


2020 2019


Trade receivables $ 7,956 $ 84,445
GST receivable 22~275 15~757


$ 30,231 $ 100,202







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


=
Landfill closure and post-closure liability


Alberta environmental law requires closure and post-closure care of landfill sites, which includes
final covering and landscaping, pumping of ground water and leachates from the site, and
ongoing environmental monitoring, site inspections and maintenance.


The estimated total liability is based on the sum of discounted future cash flows for closure and
post-closure activities for 25 years after closure using a discount rate of 1.5% and adjusted for
annual inflation.


The accrued liability portion is based on the cumulative capacity used at year end compared to
the estimated total landfill capacity. The total capacity of the site is estimated at 1,080,000 cubic
metres. The existing landfill site is expected to reach capacity in approximately 54 years.


The Commission has not designated assets for settling closure and post-closure liabilities.


2020 2019


Estimated total post-closure costs
Percentage of estimated capacity used


82,013 $ 80,281
34%      32%


Portion of total liability recognized
Estimated closure costs of landfill used


27,524 25,837
45,199 51,218


$ 72,723 $     77,055


Reserves


o


2020 2019


Capital $ 870,173 $ 981,312
Postclosure 173,570 161,907


$ 1,043,743 $ 1,143,219


Equity in tangible capital assets


Accumulated surplus consists of internally restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in
tangible capital assets as follows:


Tangible capital assets (schedule 1)
Accumulated amortization (schedule 1)


2020 2019


$ 4,367,337 $ 3,651,915
(2,569,930) (2,717,791)


$ 1,797,407 $ 934,124







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


10.


Accumulated surplus


Accumulated surplus consists of internally restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in
tangible capital assets as follows:


2020 2019


Unrestricted surplus (deficit) $ 224,200 $ (5,821)
Internally restricted surplus (reserves) (note 7) 1,043,743 1,143,219
Equity in tancjible capital assets/note 8) 1,797,407 934,124


$ 3,065,350 $ 2,071,522


Related party transactions


The Town of Cardston, Town of Raymond, Town of Magrath, Town of Milk River, Cardston
County, County of Warner, Blood Band, Village of Hill Spring, Village of Glenwood, Village of
Warner, Village of Coutts and Village of Stirling are members of the Commission and, as such,
have been identified as related parties.


Transactions
Service fees are based on the budgeted net operating costs of the Commission and are
allocated among the Commission members based on population. Servide fees charged to
Commission members are as follows:


2020 2019


Blood Band $ 222,489 $ 209,857
Cardston County 116,103 110,501
County of Warner 115,754 108,247
Town of Raymond 110,169 99,552
Town of Cardston 101,282 88,406
Town of Magrath 63,091 60,047
Village of Stirling 32,880 31,294
Town of Milk River 25,591 24,619
Village of Warner 11,542 11,104
Village of Glenwood 8,188 7,793
Village of Coutts 7,581 7,293
Village of Hill Spring 4~197 3,995


$ 818,867    $ 762,708
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CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


10. Related party transactions


2020 2019


Accounts receivable include amounts receivable from:
Town of Raymond $ $ 4,335
Blood Band 2,802


$ $    7,137


Accounts payable include amounts payable from:
Town of Cardston
Town of Raymond
Town of Ma£1rath


$    5,491 $ 5,579
2,100 -
3,277 3,400


$ 10,868 $ 8,979


During the year, Chief Mountain Solid Waste Authority contracted the Town of Raymond
to provide senior executive officer (SEO) services. In exchange the Commission will pay the
Town an annual amount not to exceed $30,000 (2019 - $36,000). SEO expense for 2020 was
$30,000 (2019 - $36,000).


During the year, Cardston County transferred land to the Commission for a consideration of $0.
The land has been recognized as a contributed asset at it’s fair value of $697,500.


These transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been valued in these
financial statements at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established
and agreed to by the related parties.


Avail L~ c, ......~,,o.,,~oo=~A ....... 13







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


11.


12.


Local authorities pension plan


Employees of the Commission participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP), which is
one of the plans covered by the Alberta Public Sector Pensions Plans Act. The plan serves
about 274,000 people and 420 employers. The LAPP is financed by the employer and employee
contributions and by investment earnings of the LAPP Fund.


Contributions for current service are recorded as expenditures in the year in which they become
due.


The Commission is required to make current service contributions to the LAPP of 9.39% of
pensionable earnings up to the year’s maximum pensionable earnings under the Canada
Pension Plan and 13.84% on pensionable earnings above this amount. Employees of the
Commission are required to make current service contributions of 8.39% of pensionable salary
up to the year’s maximum pensionable salary and 12.84% on pensionable salary above this
amount.


Total current service contributions by the Commission to the LAPP in 2020 were $21,658 (2019 -
$20,938). Total current service contributions by the employees of the Commission to the LAPP
in 2020 were $19,537 (2019 - $18,871).


At December 31,2019, the LAPP disclosed an actuarial surplus of $7.913 billion.


Debt limits


Section 3 of Alberta Regulation 76/2000 requires that debt and debt limits for the Commission be
disclosed as follows::


2020 2019


Total debt limit $ 2,335,426 $ 1,809,028


Debt servicing limit $ 408,700 $    316,580


The debt limit is calculated at 2 times revenue of the Commission (as defined in Alberta
Regulation 76/2000) and the debt service limit is calculated at 0.35 times such revenue.
Incurring debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs.
These thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify Commissions which
could be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not
represent the financial stability of the Commission. Rather, the financial statements must be
interpreted as a whole.







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


13.


14.


15.


Subsequent events


In March 2021 the Commission obtained a $200,000 debenture repayable to Treasury Board and
Finance. The debenture bears interest at 1.17% per annum with semi-annual payments of
$20,649. The debenture matures in 2026.


Approval of financial statements


These financial statements were approved by Board and Management.


Budget amounts


The 2020 budget was approved by the Commission on December 11, 2019 and has been
reported in the financial statements for information purposes only. The budget amounts have not
been audited, reviewed, or otherwise verified.


Budgeted surplus per financial statements


Less: Capital expenditures
Transfers to reserves


Add: Amortization
Transfers from reserves


Equals: balanced budget


238


(65,000)
(21,000)
20,762
65,000







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE
SCHEDULES T


For t


Schedule of tangible capital assets


Land
Engineered Machinery and Pow~


Buildings structures equipment equiprr


Cost:
Balance, beginning of year
Acquisitions
Disposals


Balance, end of year


Accumulated amortization:
Balance, beginning of year
Annual amortization
Disposals


Balance, end of year


Net book value


$
697,500


$ 1,427,399 $ 417,587 $ 150,100 $ 1,656,=
- 139,951 261,~
- (383,!


$    697,500


697,500     1,427,399 417,587 290,051 1,534,;


1,068,953 252,248 81,454 1,315,
28,548 40,111 11,004 140,,
- - (367,!


1,097,501 292,359 92,458 1,087,!


$ 329,898 $ 125,228 $ 197,593 $ 447,


2019 net book value $ - $ 358,446 $    165,339 $ 68,646 $ 341,=







CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


For the year ended December 31, 2020


Schedule of changes in accumulated surplus(deficiency)
Schedule 2


Equity in
Internally tangible capital


Unrestricted restricted assets 2020 2019


Balance, beginning of year
Excess (deficiency) of


revenue over expenses
Unrestricted funds


designated for future use
Restricted funds used for


operations
Restricted funds used for


tangible capital assets
Current year funds used for


tangible capital assets
Contributed tangible capital


assets
Disposal of tangible capital


assets
Annual amortization expense


(5,821) $


993,828


(198,577)


90,000


(193,469)


(697,500)


15,673
220,066


1,143,219


198,577


(90,O00)


(208,053)


934,124 $ 2,071,522 $


- 993,828


208,053


193,469


697,500


(15,673)
(220,066)


2,102,758


(31,236)


Change in accumulated 230,021 (99,476) 863,283 993,828 (31,236)
surplus


Balance, end of year $ 224,200 $ 1,043,743 $ 1,797,407 $ 3,065,350 $ 2,071,522
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DAVE SCHEBEK, CHAIR 
Improvement District No. 9, Banff National Park 


daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca 
PO Box 58, Lake Louise AB | TOL 1E0 


 


 


 


May 31st, 2021 
Honourable Kaycee Madu 


Minister Justice and Solicitor General 


Office of the Minister 


#424 Legislature Building, 10800 97 Ave, Edmonton AB T5K 2B6 


 


Dear Minister Madu, 


 


Re: Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS) 
  
At the Regular Council meeting for Improvement District No. 9 on May 13th, 2021, Council reviewed the plan proposed by the 
Government of Alberta to replace the RCMP in Alberta with a Provincial Police Service.  Please be advised that the Municipal Council 
for ID9 is strongly opposed to the creation of this proposal. After reviewing the Fair Deal Panel's Report to Government (as well as 
the many letters currently circulating from Municipal elected officials) ID9 Council is voicing its firm opposition to the APPS. There 
are several particularly concerning items identified in the Fair Deal Panel's report, namely:  


• the Fair Deal Panel's recommendation to proceed with developing a proposal for a Provincial Police Force, despite only 35% 
of Albertans believing the police force would contribute to the desired outcome of helping Alberta better assert itself with 
the Canadian federation. 


• Provincial and municipal governments possibly absorbing $112.4 million policing costs currently covered by the federal 
government (which would be in addition to the increasing policing costs incurred by municipalities under the Police Funding 
Model). 


 


Furthermore, and perhaps most importantly, we have an excellent relationship with our local RCMP detachment and feel no need to 
replace them with a Provincial force. The RCMP in Lake Louise and Banff have always been responsive to community needs and 
feedback, and have consistently delivered professional, quality public safety services in our communities.  In addition, ongoing 
collaboration between both Detachments and ID9 Council has resulted in a positive and adaptive presence in the region.  


We have not been provided with adequate proof that the formation of the APPS would result in better outcomes for Albertans, 
especially when considering the increased costs to our rate payers.  ID9 Council is urging the Government of Alberta to listen to 
Municipal Leaders as well as the results of the Fair Deal Panel’s report and shift efforts to improving RCMP relationships and 
resources in the Province.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any comments or concerns.   


Respectfully, 


 
 
Chair Dave Schebek 


CC: Honourable Jason Kenney, Premier 


MLA Miranda Rosin 


AUMA & RMA Memberships 


  



mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca











TOWN OF REDCLIFF 


May 18, 2021 


Honorable Kaycee Madu 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
424 Legislature Building 
10800-97 Avenue 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2B6 


RE: Town of Redcliff Support for the RCMP 


Dear Minister Madu, 


P.O. Box 40, 1 - 3rd Street N.E. 
Redcliff, Alberta , T0J 2P0 


Phone 403-548-3618 
Fax 403-548-6623 
redcliff@redcliff.ca 


www.redcliff.ca 


On behalf of the Town of Redcliff Council , I would like to express our support of the continuation 
of RCMP services in the province. We are disappointed in the Province of Alberta's reluctance 
to accept the results of its own consultative process against moving forward with plans that 
appear to want to replace the RCMP with an Alberta Provincial Police Service. 


Historically, the Town of Redcliff has provided its own police services to our community with little 
funding support from the province, managing and maintaining its policing services since 
incorporation in 1911 through to 1992. In 1992, for a period of five years, the Town of Redcliff 
contracted with the City of Medicine Hat and the City Police provided policing services to the 
Town of Redcliff. Since 1997 the Town has contracted with the RCMP for police services . 
The Town takes pride in its unique history and experience with building upon our local services 
and developing quality relations with the RCMP. 


Since 1997 our local RCMP detachment has served our community with high-quality service 
and responsiveness; we have found the RCMP have a willingness to collaborate on local events 
and projects and a sense of community and partnership. With their resources and experience 
they have introduced important community initiatives such as Victims Assistance, Drug and 
Alcohol Resistance Education (DARE) , Citizens on Patrol (COP) , Rural Crime Watch, and 
South Eastern Alberta Search and Rescue (SESAR) . The RCMP has a recognizable presence, 
respect and trust built on years of service and tradition . 


In light of the difficult and uncertain economic times, the Town considers that the exper)diture 
required to complete such a change to a Provincial Police force is concerning . As the transition 
costs are inadequately explained , the Town is concerned that operating costs will inevitably rise , 







resulting in increased costs borne by Municipalities and requiring additional taxation to our 
residents. As well, we cannot be assured, with the current information, that our level of service 
will remain the same or have any marked improvement justifying the cost of change. 


The Town of Redcliff urges you to adhere to the Fair Deal Panel's respondents' consultations, 
abandon the Provincial Police Force concept, and focus efforts on issues and needs that are of 
significant concern to Albertans. 


Regards, 


ick 


CC: The Honorable Jason Kenny, Premier 
The Honorable Ric Mciver, Minister of Municipal Affairs 
Rachel Notley, Leader of the Opposition 
Michaela Glasgo, MLA 
AUMA Members 
RMA Members 








inr: d~f FALHER 
"df-ontj Capita[ of Canada" 


May 20, 2021 


Honourable Kaycee Madu 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
424 Legislature Building 
10800-97 A venue 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 286 


RE: Town of Falher Support for the RCMP 


Dear Minister Madu, 


This letter is presented as a token of support on behalf of the Town of Falher towards the Royal 
Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) and also as a motion of opposition to the Provincial Government's 
recent proposal for an Alberta Provincial Police Force. 


Upon review of information made available by AUMA it has become abundantly clear to our entire 
council that blindly forging forward would come at an enormous cost to our province, and specifically 
its residents. The newly established Police Funding Model has already delivered a hit to small rural urban 
municipal budgets with a relatively small impact felt in terms of day to day deliverables in our 
communities. Continuing with a Provincial Police Force would come at an exorbitant cost with no 
assurance with a benefit in service. 


Just today, S&P Global Ratings has downgraded Alberta's credit rating from 'A+' to 'A' while cautioning 
that additional downgrades in the near future are very possible if new fiscal measures are not adopted 
in a post-COVID 19 Alberta. The exploration of an Alberta based Police Force was merely financial as 
there is no evidence suggesting a dissatisfaction with the quality of service offered by the RCMP to the 
magnitude that would warrant such an expense. To ask any and all residents of this province to fund 
such an ill-advised endeavour can only be viewed as an un-sound decision based on an act of ignoring 
facts, and more importantly, the voice of Albertans. 


With the Provincial Government's reduction into MSI funding over the next few years and considering 
the infrastructure maintenance investments that all Canadian municipalities face over the coming 
years, local government budgets are already being stretched beyond their limits. Where exactly does 
the Provincial government envision the funding of a Provincial Police Service coming from? 
Undoubtedly, they will ask municipalities to pay, ultimately forcing local councils to play 'bad cop' by 
increasing municipal taxes in order to fund Provincial downloading. It is our opinion that the Provincial 
government needs to seriously re-evaluate its priorities. 


P.O. BOX 155, FALHER, AB TOH 1M0 TELEPHONE: (780) 837-2247 FAX: (780) 837-2647 EMAIL: admin@falher.ca 







The Town of Falher council stands with: 


• The 65% of respondents to the Fair Deal Panel survey that voiced opposition to a Provincial 
Police Force. 


• The County of Paintearth No. 18 
• The County of St.Paul 
• Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 
• Town of Didsbury 
• Town of Magrath 
• Town of Edson 
• Village of Hill Spring 
• Town of Morinville 
• Town of Redcliff 
• Village of Rycroft 
• Any and all other citizens, municipalities, and organizations who have not voiced their opinions, 


yet. 


The Provincial Government continually encourages (and legislatively mandates) that municipal 
governments work together in a cohesive manner, perhaps they should take a page from their own 
book rerouting the funds allocated for research of an Alberta Police Service towards building stronger 
relationships with the RCMP and with Federal Partners. 


Sincerely, 


Donna Buchinski 
Mayor 


cc: The Honourable Jason Kenney, Premier 
The Honourable Ric Mciver, Minister of Municipal Affairs 
Rachel Notley, Leader of the Official Opposition 
Todd Loewen, MLA Central Peace-Notley 
AUMA Members 
RMA Members 
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ANNUAL GENERAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES


Thursday, January 7 ,2027 - 7:00 p.m.


Via Go To Webinar


BOARD OF DIRECTORS:


Kevyn Stevenson (Absen0 ....... Village of Arrowwood
Delbert Bodnarek (Absent)........... Village of Barnwell
Ed Weistra....................................... Village of Barons
Tom Rose (Absent) ..........................Town of Bassano
Norman Gerestein. City of Brooks
.lim Bester (Absent) ........-................. Cardston County
Richard 8en9ry.............................. Town of Cardston
Peggy Hovde ..,........................ Village of Carmangay
Jamie Smith (Absent).....-............Vi11age of Champion
Doug MacPherson (Absent)........Town of Claresholm
Elizabeth Christensen (Absent)..... Town of Coalhurst
Tanya Smith......................................Vi11a9e of Coutts
warren lvlickels (Absent)................ Village of Cowley
Dave Fi1ipu22i............................Mun. Crowsnest Pass


Dean Ward...............................Mun. Crowsnest Pass


Kole Stein1ey....................-.............Vi11age of Duchess
Gordon Wolstenholme........... Town of Fort Macleod
Gerry Carter (Absent).................Vi11age of Glenwood
Suzanne French (Absent)............Vi11age of Hill Spring
Morris Zeinstra (Absent)............... Lethbridge County


STAF F:


Lenze Kuiper........
Jaime Thomas......


..... Director
GIS Analyst


Brad Koch (Absent)..


Richard Van Ee ......


Peggy Losey (Absen0


sheldon Walker .....


Victor Czop (Absent)


Marinus de Leeuw
Henry de Kok .......
Bev Everts ...........
Don Anderberg ....


Ronald Davis (Absent)


Stewart Foss - ...........
DonNorby ...............
Matthew Foss -.........
Jennifer crowson......
Margaret Plumtree ..


Jason schneider
Lyle Magnuson.
David cody.......
Marty Kirby......
lan Sundquist........


Tara Cryderman


. Vulcan County


.......... Village of Lomond


........... Town of Magrath


......... Town of Milk River


............ Village of Milo


......... Town of Nanton


... Village of Nobleford
Town of Picture Butte
M.D. of Pincher Creek
... Town Pincher creek
..... M.D. of Ranchland
......Town of Raymond
.........-Town of Stavely
........ village of Stirling
............. M.D. of Taber
....... Town of Vauxhall


.............. Town of Vulcan


.......... County of Warner


........... Village of Warner


......... M.D. Willow Creek


Executive Assistant


Chair Gordon Wolstenholme called the meeting to order, the time being 7:00 pm


1. APPROVAT OF AGENDA


Moved by: Jennifer Crowson


THAT the Boa rd of Directors approve the agenda of Janua ry 7 ,2027, as presented. CARRIED
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2. RECOGNITION OF MEMBERS AND ATTERNATE MEMBERS FOR 2021


The following list of Members and Alternate Members was presented to the Board for
information.


Arrowwood - Villaqe Kevyn Stevenson Matt Crane
Barnwell - Village Delbert Bodnarek lan Matheson
Barons - Village Ed Weistra
Bassano - Town Tom Rose Ron Wckson
Brooks - City Norman Gerestein
Cardston - County Roger Houghton
Cardston - Town Richard Bengry
Carmangay - Village Peggy Hovde JoAnne Juce
Champion - Village Trevor Wagenvoort
Claresholm - Town Doug MacPherson Brad Schlossberoer
Coalhurst - Town Elizabeth Christensen
Coutts - Village Tanya Smith [\/arvin Bohne
Cowley - Village Warren Mickels
Crowsnest Pass -
Municipality


Dave Filipuzzi &
Dean Ward


Duchess - Villaqe Kole Steinley
Fort Macleod - Town Gordon Wolstenholme Brent Feyter
Glenwood - Villaqe Gerry Carter
Hill Spring - Village
Lethbridge - County Morris Zeinstra
Lomond - Villaoe Brad Koch
Magrath - Town


Peggy Losey
Milo - Village Sheldon Walker Scott Schroeder
Nanton - Town Victor Czop Beryl West
Nobleford - Town Marinus de Leeuw Corne Mans
Picture Butte - Town Henry de Kok Teresa Feist
Pincher Creek - M. D. No. I Bev Everts Quentin Stevick
Pincher Creek - Town Don Anderbero Brian McGillivray


Ronald Davis Harry Streeter
Raymond - Town Stewart Foss
Stavely - Town Don Norby
Stirling - Village Matthew Foss Rob Edwards
Taber - Municipal District Jen n ifer Crowson Tamara Miyanaqa
Vauxhall - Town Margaret Plumtree Marilyn Forchuk
Vulcan - County Jason Schneider Douq Loqan
Vulcan - Town Lyle Maqnuson Paul Taylor
Warner - County No. 5 David Cody Morgan Rockenbach
Warner - Village Marty Kirby Sandi Hedin
Willow Creek - M.D. No. 26 lan Sundquist Maryanne Sandberg


Municipali Alternate Member
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Richard Van Ee
Ivlilk River - Town


Ranchland - M.D. No. 66


Member


Ron Gorzitza


I Jim Bester


Jamie Smith


Tina Preston


Suzanne French







3. APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR 2021


Election of Chaira


c


Advance Nominations: Gordon Wolstenholme (Town of Fort Macleod)


Nominations from the Floor: None


Gordon Wolstenholme was elected Chair by acclamation


b. Election of Vice-Chair


Advance Nominations: Jim Bester (Ca rdston County)


Nominations from the Floor: None


Jim Bester was elected Vice-Chair by acclamation.


Election of Executive Committee


Advance Nominations: Jennifer Crowson (MD of Taber)


Doug MacPherson (Town of Claresholm)


Margaret Plumtree (Town of Vauxhall)


lan Sundquist (MD of Willow Creek)


Don Anderberg (Town of Pincher Creek)


Richard Bengry (Town of Cardston)


Nominations from the Floor: None


Executive Committee Member Margaret Plumtree removed herself from the


nominations, stating that due to the upcoming Municipal Elections, she was


willinB to remove herself to allow candidate Richard Bengry to join the Executive


Committee.


As an election for Executive Committee Members was no longer required, the
following were elected by acclamation to the Executive Committee:


lennifer Crowson (MD of Taber)
Doug MacPherson (Town of Claresholm)


lan Sundquist (MD of Willow Creek)


Don Anderberg (Town of Pincher Creek)


Richard Bengry (Town of Cardston)
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4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES


Moved by: Richard Bengry


THAT the Board of Directors approve the minutes of September 3,2O2O, as presented. CARRIED


5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES


There was no business arising from the minutes.


6. REPORTS


Executive Committee Report


The Executive Committee Report, for meetings from AuBust 2020 to December 2020,


was presented for information.


7. BUSINESS


Proposed 2021 Budtet


a


a


The 2021 Budget was presented to the Board of Directors.


Director Lenze Kuiper explained the rationale of the budget, including the loss of
members (both Planning and GIS), the decrease in revenue throughout the year,


the capital reserve status, and other challenges from 2020.


Mr. Kuiper updated the Board on the proposed expenses for 2021, such as


current staffing, new cost savings initiatives, and reductions in expenses for the


upcoming year. There will be no staff salary increases for 2021, which is an


add itional cost savinSs.


Moved by: Margaret Plumtree


THAT the Board of Directors approve the 2021 Budget, as presented.
CARRIED


8. ACCOUNTS


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Board of Directors accept the Summary of Balance Sheet and lncome


Statement for the 1o-month period of January 1 - October 37,2O2O.
CARRIED
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9. ADJOURNMENT


With nothing further to discuss, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme, at 7:41 pm, adjourned the Annual
General Board of Directors' Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Services Commission, until
Thursdav, March 4, 2021, at 7:00 p.m.


CHAIR
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Red Deer County 


June 4, 2021 


sent via email: ministrvoflustice.gov.ab.ca 


Honourable Kaycee Madu 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
424 Legislature Building 
10800 - 97 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB T5K 2B6 


Dear Minister Madu 


RE: Proposed Alberta Provincial Police Services 


OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
38106 Range Road 275 


Red Deer County, AB T4S 2L9 
Phone: 403.350.2152 


Fax: 403.350.2164 


Red Deer County stands in solidarity with fellow municipalities across Alberta in our support of the 
Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) as the premier choice for our province's police force. In 
reviewing the Fair Deal Panel: Report to Government, it is with displeasure that Council notes the 
proposal did not consider current provincial challenges such as struggling economies and tighter 
budget realities. Please be advised that Council vehemently opposes the creation of an Alberta 
Provincial Police Service (APPS). 


Council has concerns that the Alberta government would charge forward with a plan to replace the 
RCMP with APPS when the National Police Federation notes that a new provincial force would cost 
Alberta taxpayers at least $112 million more a year than they are currently paying. Focused efforts 
should not be on causing further economic burden to County residents and ratepayers. The 
implementation of the Police Funding Model (PFM) in April 2020 has already stripped our municipality 
and many others of the opportunity for input and consultation powers with regard to local policing 
through the suspension of municipally-funded enhanced policing positions. 


The Fair Deal Panel recommendation is to proceed with developing a proposal for a provincial police 
force, despite only 35% of Albertans believing it would contribute to the desired outcome of helping 
Alberta improve its position in the federation. 


In addition, the 2020 Alberta Police Federation survey concluded that "replacing the RCMP is viewed 
as a least helpful measure tested to improve Alberta's place in Canada." Eighty-one percent of 
Albertans served by the RCMP are satisfied with the service they receive, and 70% of Albertans 
oppose replacing the RCMP with an expensive new provincial police service. 


www.rdcounty.ca 
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In closing, Red Deer County Council does not foresee where a new police force would improve 
efficiency or quality of life for our residents and ratepayers. In fact, as economic challenges remain 
coming out of a pandemic, changing out of the current system would only increase economic burden 
on our municipality and taxpayers in the Province of Alberta. 


Red Deer County wholeheartedly appreciates our strong working relationships with all five (5) of our 
local RCMP detachments, recognizing the hard work over the years building trust and working 
relationships on the foundation of respect. We ask that the Government of Alberta reassess priorities 
and abandon the transition study through the Police Act review to focus efforts towards upgrades to 
the criminal justice and social support systems in the Province to achieve better outcomes. 


There needs to be an opportunity for open dialogue between the Province and municipal stakeholders 
on this issue — we strongly encourage all efforts should be focused on working with the RCMP to 
achieve the desired community results all Albertans need. 


Yours truly 


ER COUNTY 
~ i 


Mayor 


c A~erta Municipalities 
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